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%1t #%:2 Design Concept

HEBRE (RR) ARLE, URENEMENREEE, BREFHNEOE
&, BARBREEKR. BN, “S% Snow” BETMEHEH R, ULEFS
HREREFR. "X Snow” BERREXMEMENL, RKREH, QFHR. 5
H#. BEMT.

China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited promotes brand repositioning,
highlighting the quality of its beers and showcasing the innovative beer-making
techniques the Company uses to ensure customers enjoy its products’ unique
flavours and heritage. Meanwhile, the Company’s brand “E 7% Snow” introduces
new products that cater to the needs of young consumers. In order to achieve
sustainable development in the future, “E % Snow” strives to redefine beer culture
in China, keeps classic flavours and sense of craftsmanship, while setting trends
through innovation.
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COMPANY PROFILE AND GROUP STRUCTURE

HAEE (BR) ARAF
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i (H ) HRAT

(HOLDINGS)

51.91%*

(FZE—EF+=-A=+—H)
(As at 31 December 2017)

A 0 (4 ) A IR 2
CHINA RESOURCES BEER
(HOLDINGS) COMPANY

>

CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS)
COMPANY LIMITED

China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code:
00291), is a beer listed subsidiary company of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited (“CRH”"). The Group focuses on the
manufacturing, sales and distribution of beer products.

In 2015, the Company successfully completed its business
restructuring and transformed itself into a beer-focused
enterprise, and was renamed from “China Resources Enterprise,
Limited” to “China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited”,
In October 2016, the Company completed the acquisition of 49%
stake of China Resources Snow Breweries Limited (“CRSB”),
which became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The Group has been in the beer business in China since 1994. Its
total beer sales volume ranked number one in the China market
since 2006. The flagship brand “E7 Snow” is the largest beer
brand by volume worldwide.

As a member of China Resources Group, we are dedicated to
leading the business progress and building a better life together
with our consumers, shareholders, staff and business partners,
and make the Group a trusted and beloved beer enterprise.

A0 % 7 v A R 2§
CHINA RESOURCES
SNOW BREWERIES

LIMITED LIMITED
>

100%*

AL () AR2AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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MAJOR FIGURES IN 2017

FEFTRE

HESN IHEHE ANNUAL PRODUCTION

AVERAGE SELLING PRICE BEER SALES VOLUME CAPACITY
2,516 11.8 22
BTAARD BHTFH BhFFH

RMB/kI mkl mkI

@ ‘
BANx RIAE RBE®
GP MARGIN STAFF NO. DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

33.7% 52,000 39
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MILESTONES IN 2017

3 A MARCH

HHSREHIE XX T EXEFTEME, TREF~4E410007 TH.
The relocation project for CRSB Wuhan factory in Hubei commenced. The
annual production capacity will be approximately 1 million kiloliters after
the completion.

CREEBBRERSAREZE BAEDELERY), XRAEFAESZE+=F3
N BRBBIXE" ZYEZ. 6A28, 23 RFEBLTKINE L—EA T =M
HEFRMNBIRG, 15K MMAKRBABZTOLIE, 1ZEZEESEE "B, Bk 2
RIS R,

The flagship campaign “Snow Great Expedition, Challenge the Unclimbed by
College Student” kicked-off across the country, marking the launch of “Snow
Great Expedition” for the thirteenth consecutive year. On 2 June, 23 brave
undergraduates conquered an unclimbed 5,155-meter-high peak in Diging in
Yunnan Province. The campaign conveys the spirit of “ambitious, challenge
and innovative”.

4 HAPRIL

T RANAIChnbrand &0 “2017F F E mE 18 44(C-BPI®) " migHE, "5
7€ Snow " ELEMEFME “WEREHTEE A",

Chnbrand, a brand rating agency, released “2017 China Brand Power Index
(C-BPI®)", “E1E Snow” beer ranked number one on the “Beer Brand List” for

the fourth consecutive years.

6HJUNE

"ETE Snow” BB MRS ERH M MITNERSITR “2017FHE500
RANERE" RENERITEIART.228.36127T, BFIF28(L,
“E1E Snow” was named the “China’s 500 Most Valued Brands Top 2017” by

The World Brand Laboratory and its independent judge panel. It ranked 28th
and its brand value was accessed at RMB122,836 million.

10HOCTOBER

HPSERARIRETE SHLMEE "2017FE SEAKR SR - FERBLERD", UKD
“E4E Snow” MBI ES ST E L TR,

CRSB was awarded the “2017 China Advertising Great-wall Awards - The Best Branding Case Study of
the Year” organized by the China Advertising Association, which recognized the contribution of “Z%

Snow” beer to the advertising industry in China.

T RAMChnbrand &1 “2017F R EMEFBERM(C-CSI®) " mIEHEE, "SI Snow” ELE=F
RIKBBIT L E—F,

“ETE Snow” was named the top beer brand in the “2017 China Consumer Satisfaction Index (C-CSI®)”
by Chnbrand, a brand rating agency, for the third consecutive year.

AR () ARZ2AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
44} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT
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MILESTONES IN 2017

1TANOVEMBER

REH 2B FREE STERTH OmSIH Q2016 FH 2 TERR D) A1 T 16D
BTt SRTELRIER, LHESEEBUSIH I RBITILE =4,

The Research Centre for Social Responsibility of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences released the “2016 Blue Book of Corporate Social Responsibility”
and revealed the social responsibility development index of 16 key
industries. CRSB scored 83 marks and ranked second in the food industry.

HERASEEEHEL "Ry Firm, B CRRARENL M8, N CBERE".
AT CRRT R R W Re R REENBHETEERA, NRREERRFES
BRARR,

CRSB launched its new product line, “Concept Series”, which enhanced the overall
style of various products including “Brave the World”, “Draft Beer”, “Male Opera
Mask” and “Female Opera Mask” with the theme “You Define Your Future” The new
product line enhanced the brand image and diversified customer experience.

BBMRIEHE 2 20 Eﬁé@émﬂ.t BRES, LASEEE (UE) AR

RERALBEEEE (1)) BRFE IJ%/XXME/%EN%TEJ& mE &
%éi@ﬁﬂﬁﬁé%—ﬁ@fﬂ%%@é%(j(ﬁ” b ) — — LR, URBHEALRWY

HITHMRBER M F R I

China Resources Snow Breweries (Henan) Co., Ltd. and China Resources
Snow Breweries (Sichuan) Co., Ltd. were awarded the “Hong Kong Green
Awards - Green Management Award (Large Corporation) — Corporate —
Merit” for the first time by the Hong Kong Green Council in recognition of
their efforts in implementing environmental protection policy.

12A DECEMBER

REXHARMFAILEMERES T Ty se B ExUR=, Fr7849207 TF.
The relocation and expansion project of Qinhuangdao factory under Tianjin
regional company in Hebei Province commenced operation. The annual
production capacity will be approximately 0.2 million kiloliters.

RAMIZBEUARARLBERS, T2017F12 ARMETN HAET28.057L, TE
B AEM900{ZTT, &ZOWGEEi‘“&E 80%, TNEAARET2015F F/EEE L
SREHRNFITEN S,

The Company’s share price closed at HK$28.05 as at the end of December
2017, with a market capitalization of over HK$90 billion, a growth of over
80% compared to 2016. It marks a record high in both the share price and
market capitalization since the Company focused on beer business in 2015.

dNOYD IHLLNOAY
e
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2017

1 AJANUARY

(PRERMSE) &

China Financial Market

Mercury Awards

20155 F IR — BRI -
THZR R ERRK

Annual Report 2015 - Overall

2016 P ERE L AR ARR
China Financial Market Listed
Company Awards 2016

MerComm, Inc.

2HFEBRUARY

Presentation: Silver (Consumer

BARIMNER Goods)
Most Valuable Brand Award

4 HAPRIL

CILMAE T =& CERD
Yazhou Zhoukan The Mirror

£ IRATT 100051715 BEARRHELHSRER

Global Chinese Business  The 6th Outstanding
1000 Ranking Corporate Social

2016 F S ABE DR Responsibility Award
R AR AR 2 FHER
The Largest Food and
Beverage Company
Award 2016

Responsibility Award

5 HMAY

BEERBEXRRAMS

Hong Kong Investor Relations
Association
FZRBEBRABERRARR

HKIRA 3rd Investor Relations Awards
RERAERFRR — R

Best IR Company - Mid Cap

ERAERZENME — PERR
Best IR Presentation Collaterals — Mid Cap

Outstanding Corporate Social

3HAMARCH

ML ER) & (TiMd

Corporate

Governance Asia

20165 E T i dll
EERHAR

E'u /I:l>> ?:k/l_,\
Corporate Governance
Asia

2016 F BT L ERRH AR
Corporate Governance Asia

Corporate Director of the Recognition Awards 2016

Year Award 2016
RIS

Asian Corporate Director

6HJUNE

Kt
Oxfam

SRR TR Al fk 1T %12016-2017
Corporate Donor Programme
2016-2017

FHEERR AR

Oxfam Corporate Donor Award

A (k) M AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

14} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT

MMl B 5 858
Asia’s Icon on Corporate
Governance

CIM L ER) =&
Corporate Governance Asia
2017FELNEBRARH ALK

Asian Excellence Recognition
Awards 2017

THEEEFEITE (BREXR)
Asia’s Best CEO (Investor Relations)
THEEEREVSE (BREXR)
Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)

RERRERRDL

Best Investor Relations Company

RERAERFAR

Best Investor Relations Professional
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EEARTIESE
League of American
Communications
Professionals LLC (LACP)
2016 Vision F iR EE IR AR

2016 Vision Awards Annual
Report Competition

HEEMAER . RE
Consumer Consumables
Category: Silver Award

AKX 48052 HE 55 650L
Ranked 65th in Top 80 Winners
Reports — Asia-Pacific Region

P EFHR4058
Top 40 Chinese Reports

1TANOVEMBER

EERESMIMHS

The Hong Kong Institute

of Financial Analysts and
Professional Commentators
Limited

2017 FEEBRRSMITHS EHAF
RE

IFAPC Outstanding Listed Company
Award 2017

FHRBFEAR

Outstanding Listed Company of the Year

(MEFRE) *E
Fortune China

P E 50038 7l
Fortune China 500
Z5I|E 22201
Ranked 222nd

(MHMEREE) K&

Institutional Investor

2017FLHR N AEEHAKRE
The All-Asia Executive Team
Survey 2017

TMHEZ Gz —

One of Asia’s Most Honored
Companies

BERAEXRRAR (RHE—
%, EHAREFE=H—HRAH
EmER)

Best Investor Relations
Professional (Sell Side first
place, Buy Side and Sell Side
third place — Consumer staple
sector)

S48 R I 2 %
Hong Kong Economic
Journal and PR Asia

A EHARKIL2017

Listed Company Award of
Excellence 2017
REETARR (R — KTHE)
Listed Company Award of
Excellence (Main Board - Large
Market Capitalization)

“E-LERmRRE
AWARDS AND RECOGNITION IN 2017

8HAUGUST

MerComm, Inc.

EFRARCE R KX

International Annual Report
Competition (ARC) Awards

©n S EwEE S RUEES K
(HEE A &)
Beer/Wine/Spirits Category: Gold
Award (Cover Photo/Design)

WE S EEE S RUEAR  BE
CENRI R 1)

Beer/Wine/Spirits Category: Silver
Award (Printing & Production)

WE, RaRRmAR : #R
CENRI B2 i4%)

Tobacco, Food & Beverage
Category: Bronze Award (Printing &

Production)
iE K48 4ER . R . . .
et W/ WEE, WEAS] . RRE
- (ERE®)

Manufacturing & Distributing
Category: Silver Award (Traditional
Annual Report)

& R fH4A R - R
(HEAER /&1t
Manufacturing & Distributing
Category: Bronze Award (Cover
Photo/Design)

Beer/Wine/Spirits Category:
Honors Award (Infographics)
HIER D HER  LER
(MTT&IH)

Manufacturing & Distributing
Category: Honors Award (Interior
Design)

10HOCTOBER

MerComm, Inc.

E BrGalaxy® 1

International Galaxy Awards

FIR— R A7 HER
SHEEAER SR

Gold Award for Annual Reports — Print:
Beer Manufacturing, Sales & Distribution

FR R REB2EMHEAR

LEK

Honors Award for Annual Reports - Print:
Food/Packaged Goods

12A DECEMBER

IR Magazine

IR MagazineR Il — 2017 F K44 X
IR Magazine Awards — Great China 2017

SEBRKRAERF

Best Overall Investor Relations
BERAEXR - aREERE

Best IR by a Senior Management Team
RERAEXRR - FBX

Best in Country — Hong Kong
HSERAERRE — BHEERD

Best in Sector - Consumer Staples

HERRERRAR (KB
Best Investor Relations Officer (Large Cap)

dNOYD IHLLNOAY
e
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

HE-_FT—tF+-A=+—HILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2017

Bl Em BREXKREERR

TURNOVER BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE

BEZEZ LS BELEZ LS

Continuing operations

Continuing operations

~
Q 29,732

~
8 0.36

ARMETTE RMB million AR RMB
—ZE—+tHF ZE—RF —E—RF
2017 2016 2015
ARTEART AEmBAT ARDEAT
RMB million RMB million  RMB million
Bl & Turnover
—BFELEZ LS - continuing operations 29,732 28,694 27,959
—BRIEZREZIE - discontinued operations’ - - 79,021
W 5518 2 X 5 Elimination of inter-segment
transactions - - (108)
29,732 28,694 106,872
RRBIREN ST Profit/(loss) attributable to
(5H) shareholders of the Company
—REZLEZE - continuing operations 1,175 629 667
—BEIEREZIET - discontinued operations’ - - (4,785)
1,175 629 (4,118)
BREAREERF] Basic and diluted earnings/
(S51) 2 (loss) per share?
—FELEZ IS - continuing operations RMBO0.36 RMBO0.22 RMBO0.25
—BRIEZLEZWE - discontinued operations’ - RMB(1.81)
RMBO0.36 RMBO0.22 RMB(1.56)
B E Dividend per share
— ] - interim RMBO0.07 - -
— RHA - final RMBO0.07 RMB0.08 -
RMBO0.14 RMBO0.08 -
— 53 - special - - HK$12.30
(RMB10.08)

10 AL () AR2AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
i

# 2017 ANNUAL REPORT
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

F-ZF—tF+=-A=+—H Asat 31 December 2017

ZSNCT &IV € BR®E>#E: KEHE
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NET ASSETS PER SHARE:
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY BOOK VALUE

= =

18,421 Q 5.68 Q
T E T E

17,601 8 5.43 .
Lo Lo

10,056 Q 413 .

ABRME AT RMB million ARMIT RMB

Fog-tf T-T-AF FoI-BF

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015

ARMEAT ARMBAT ARMEAT
RMB million RMB million RMB million

/N S TR e Equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company 18,421 17,601 10,056

FEE BRI Non-controlling interests 64 66 9,264
BiEE Total equity 18,485 17,667 19,320
FEETETM Consolidated net borrowings 1,030 3,677 2,690
il Gearing ratio® 5.6% 20.8% 13.9%
malt & Current ratio 0.49 0.53 0.59
BRAF2ME: Net assets per share:

— k@& - book value RMB5.68 RMB5.43 RMB4.13
B Notes:

1. AEHATF_Z-—AFNA-—AEHEHFERBEL 1. The Group disposed of its non-beer businesses on 1 September 2015. These

%, ZZELSEREEVMSREENESSIHER businesses are presented as discontinued operations according to the Hong
KIFREZ %, Kong Financial Reporting Standard 5.

2. —E—tEFZERERRBERINERBR-_FT— 2. Basic and diluted earnings per share for 2017 reflected the benefit of the
ANETA+T BB ESEEBAR A F49% acquisition of 49% stake in China Resources Snow Breweries Limited on 11
AT R A5 R =T — N FHRZ MW, October 2016 and the effect of rights issue in 2016.

3. MR ERBEREBIOEIS SNEH LA, 3. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of consolidated net borrowings to total

equity.

BEYL£x

dNOYD FHL LNOV
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B AR R T RB R B TR B A o i R
ANALYSIS OF TURNOVER AND EARNINGS
BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION

HEZZ—tHF+=-A=+—HBILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2017

2017
26% .
51% 625%
ZHW2ELT S
Turnover proportion
by segment
Fan o s
Eastern region Central region Southern region
2017
o 54%
52% B RITFIE 5 .
RBMEIRF St 49%
EBIT proportion
by segment
Fan o B

Eastern region

Central region

Southern region

—2—tF ZFRF #8080
2017 2016 Increased/
ARMEART AEMBATT (Decreased)
B2 E LR Turnover by segment RMB million  RMB million %
KX Eastern region 15,605 15,445 1.0%
X Central region 6,971 6,636 5.0%
X Southern region 7,893 7,374 7.0%
30,469 29,455 3.4%

W HEZ R 5 Elimination of inter-segment
transactions (737) (761) (3.2%)
BE Total 29,732 28,694 3.6%
—ZT—+tF —E—RF M OR)
2017 2016 Increased/
B WMZRITFER Earnings before interest and ARMEART AEMBAT  (Decreased)
B a2 F taxation by segment RMB million  RMB million %
KX Eastern region 877 1,007 (12.9%)
FX Central region 63 73 (13.7%)
X Southern region 1,014 772 31.3%
1,954 1,852 5.5%
UNCIPSRE 793! Net corporate expenses (103) (95) 8.4%
=R} Total 1,851 1,757 5.4%

AL () AR2AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
414} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT
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N
i

A+/\BELEHE 7,

New product “Brave the World superX” was launched nationally on 18

7= “BE R EsuperX” T2 —)\&F









16

1k &

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

AR ER b S

—T—EF, AREANLSHLRERK,
FEANFEWAR, B KGO R RMT
B, R MIRTT AR F SRS R A,
H ISR AER B T AP E B 1T b M RS,
R SR B A O] HR 52 57 UR 5K A it

AEABRMEIARERRIEEAFW
FEENEBH—FTERBREKR, MEmEASE
SRt BARARIGBROE D — N
. "

“The Group will advance its expansion by way
of organic growth, by grasping appropriate
acquisition and co-operation opportunities,
as well as by one of the most important
strategies — premiumization.”

F%<EA CHEN LANG
T & Chairman

FINAL RESULTS

In 2017, the Group continued to make steady progress in
business, while striving to accelerate its transformation
and upgrade by implementing strategic measures such as
innovative development and marketing, capacity optimization
and efficiency improvement. As a result, the Group is on path
to further strengthen its competitive edge in the Chinese
beer industry and construct a solid foundation to reward its
shareholders in the long term.

Al () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

414} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



ARARFZE—R"FTAZR KWL ES
B BLO%/N, FIHRNBEE_F—
tFLERE, TRERWE, XARINA
EEHEERBENFEFR=_FE—ARFT AT
— BRI %ENE — T —EFH100%,
HE_ZT—+tF+A=+—HLEFE,
REARNGZEE LI RBRFRERN G 5E T
5 Bl AR M29,732,000,0007T & 49
A R M1,175,000,0007T, % F # K3.6%
86.8%, A&EH T ZFE—tFMHRITF
BEBMAIAMEZE EASL%E ARD
1,851,000,0007C,

KRR B

EFELBENTFE—/)\FANATHEHEHKF
G, M-E— )\ FRA=Z+HRBINEANTK
REMOBRRRABEZE-_TE—tF+=-A=
+—HLEFERBARE, SKRARM0.07
T (ZE—XRF: 8RARM0.087T), E
FRHIR BB ART0.077T, —E—+HFE
FREEFRNERARTONLT (ZFE—R
F. BRART0.087T), AZWBR RN K
SHMZH,

REEHAT

“E—tF, PERETHEEZIARED
B, FmEMESERET, heMEEHEK
NPT ERE RN ENT, ZRTIHR
THE M RERHNE, AREBES "FR
Btk BEAR SIFAR ZAEEZX
B, KiEARBE mEER. R,
BaEE REME BExXEZHEE
. BEREREELEE AR S
BHE, MBETRMCRERIREFE AR R
BREN, AERASESURFEEEMEE
BMBER, MipRE AR, ERTH
£ EH "SI Snow” BEHE S AN HEH
BAHHEL90%.

F 5t
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

The Company successfully completed the acquisition of a
49% stake in CRSB in October 2016, the benefit of which was
fully reflected in 2017. Upon completion of the acquisition,
the Company’s share of CRSB’s profit increased from 51%
before 11 October 2016 to 100% in 2017. For the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group’s consolidated turnover and profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders were approximately
RMB29,732,000,000 and RMB1,175,000,000 respectively,
representing an increase by 3.6% and 86.8% respectively
compared with 2016. The Group’s earnings before interest
and taxation in 2017 increased by 5.4% to RMB1,851,000,000
compared with 2016.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) recommends a final
dividend of RMB0.07 per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: RMBO0.08 per share), payable on or around 15 June
2018 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 30 May 2018. Together with the
interim dividend of RMBO0.07 per share, the total dividend for
2017 will amount to RMBO0.14 per share (2016: RMB0.08 per
share), to show its appreciation to shareholders for their support
of the Group.

STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION

In 2017, the Chinese beer market volume steadied and the
industrial structure on product mix gradually transformed
as sales of mid- to high-end beer became the main
driver for the industry’s revenue growth. Focused on the
growth opportunities brought about by the consumption
upgrade, the Group focused on three main management
themes - “quality growth, transformation and upgrade,
innovative development” The Group also implemented
organizational restructuring, brand repositioning, capacity
optimization, lean sales, channel renovation, operational
reform, etc. The Group has achieved a sales increase in
mid- to high-end beer through brand repositioning as well
as an improvement in channel competitiveness through
solidifying measures. The Group enjoyed continuous
increase in both beer sales volume and average selling
price with a higher market share. The national brand
“E1E Snow” accounted for approximately 90% of the total beer
sales volume of the Group.

17

SYIATOHIYYHS YN0 OL
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Tk &
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

AEH-EENEERENRT. TEHF
B, RERANLHELER —SEMET
YR a. AN, AR KRR
T RETRERRRE, BRUBLBEDNDR
RAEEFAHROEMW, £FHEENEF
xR, BaHETH, ARHBEYBRHESA
0, BHERTD, RBITHERE, &t
o m, AEBHFSERIT R~
TR BREEARXAEBENEE
B, TR KA RE,

Bl =

—T—tF, PEHLFRBPALE, #AR
TEEIEKT KR CSRERRT WM.
“E-)\FERTNAARBHOTRZE, M
THELFREFREERNEN, MRET
FRTB IR, FEEHL T REENE
T, IFBRERNLFERNTE S,

RENEABTIHEA N —REK B/EE
BHRRE, JHEEIRE NS BR SR R
m, MBEMZNEAMER=E, Fik, &
SENTL AR KA R BEL, HBERTE
o B RERREEFMEH A ENEHE —F R
RHEKX, Mm~mERSHERNERWRIE
KEHEAP—NERHEET [,

The Group has always focused on the improvement of
operational efficiency. During the year under review, the Group
primarily established an unified national operation and digital
logistics platform. In addition, the Group boosted its production
efficiency and enhanced the strategy on energy conservation
and consumption reduction, which effectively absorbed the
effects brought about by the rising cost of packaging materials
and logistics, and managed to maintain the gross profit margin.
In terms of lean sales, the Group set up a lean sales team to
strengthen its sales capacity and improve efficiency. In terms of
capacity optimization, the Group executed a series of capacity
improvement plans, including consolidating and shutting down
beer plants with low efficiency in order to raise the medium to
long term production efficiency.

PROSPECTS

In 2017, the Chinese economy steadily improved and moved
from “high-speed growth” towards a new phase of “high-quality
development”. 2018 will be the first full year the spirit of the
19th National Congress of the Communist Party of China has
been implemented. The Chinese economy is expected to grow at
a steady pace. The country’s economic structure will continue to
progress and consumption will be the main spur for the growth
of the economy.

The sales volume of the beer market in China has started
to stabilize after experiencing a downturn. Consumers also
increasingly prefer mid- to high-end beer products and the
Group believes that there is still room for growth in the market.
Therefore, the Group is fully confident in the future development
of the market and will advance its expansion by way of organic
growth, by grasping appropriate acquisition and co-operation
opportunities, as well as by one of the most important strategies
— premiumization.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

To cope with the rising costs of raw materials, packaging
materials, labour and other costs in 2018, the Group has adopted
different measures, such as lean marketing, lean production,
product refinement and premiumization to absorb the cost
pressure. The Group is also committed to improving efficiency
in various ways including reserving certain raw materials for
an appropriate time and implementing electronization and
automation in certain work processes. In the meantime, the
Group moderately adjusts the prices of some of its products in
certain regions to mitigate the heightened cost pressure.

In the medium to long term, the Group will endeavor to improve
the impact of its brand and mid- to high-end products by
utilizing continuously the three main management themes
- “quality growth, transformation and upgrade, innovative
development” and by further implementing organizational
restructuring, brand repositioning, capacity optimization, lean
sales, channel renovation, operational reform, etc. The Group
will also create a digital sales and marketing model and upgrade
its information platform, improve organizational efficiency, as
well as reinforce its corporate culture and team building. The
implementation of the aforementioned measures will help
the Group’s business development in the future and boost
profitability.

As a leading beer enterprise in China, the Group strives to move
into its new era and lead the advancement in the beer industry.
The Company achieved a good performance in stock price in
2017, which indicates the shareholders appreciate the Group’s
development direction and the management’s execution. We
look forward to working together with all stakeholders to create
higher corporate values and to make the Group a trusted and
beloved beer enterprise.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to our shareholders, management and
employees for their support, commitment and contributions, as
well as to our customers and business partners for their long
term trust. Looking ahead, we will continue to offer more quality
products and services to our customers and deliver attractive
returns to our shareholders.

CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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The Group strives to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance, along with active communication with shareholders
and investors. The Group uses an advanced communication
mechanism and various effective channels to ensure
information is distributed accurately and timely to guarantee
investors are well informed of the Group’s latest developments
and business strategy. The Group also listens carefully to the
views and suggestions made by investors, which help enhance
its operational performance and bring better returns for
shareholders.

The Group stays in touch with shareholders and investors
through a number of different channels. Apart from results
announcements, there are numerous one-on-one meetings,
luncheons, forums and telephone conferences arranged
by financial institutions. In 2017, the Group conducted
approximately 380 meetings with more than 1,300 fund
managers and analysts.

RARABE-—F-—=FE-_F-—tFNFLETHETE
YEAR-END CLOSING PRICE AND MARKET CAPITALIZATION OF THE COMPANY FOR 2013-2017

BT E T HKS million

(T {& Market capitalization)

0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000
| | | | |
2017 28.05 90,999
2016 15.40
2015’ 15,22”
2014 779223
2013 12.2428
0 é 1‘0 1‘5 2‘0 2‘5 3‘0 3‘5
AT HKS (Yem ¢ Closing price)

I Closing price

REFANRFEULEARBRAEXRRER
BERINA, ERERATIZOARL RN,
ARBIRREZNENBEERNR, HPE
FEIR Magazineil & K " EBRIZE R E X
R BEERREXREZ-SREEE.
BRERREXR -BEX. "RERRE

l T1{E Market capitalization

During the year under review, the Group’s efforts in corporate
governance and investor relations won various industry
accolades. In view of its outstanding performance in the capital
market, the Company has won a number of authoritative awards,
including “Best Overall Investor Relations”, “Best IR by a Senior
Management Team”, “Best in Country — Hong Kong”, “Best in
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Sector — Consumer Staples” and “Best Investor Relations Officer
(Large Cap)” by IR Magazine; “Best IR Company - Mid Cap”
and “Best IR Presentation Collaterals - Mid Cap” by the Hong
Kong Investor Relations Association; “Asia’s Icon on Corporate
Governance”, “Asian Corporate Director Recognition Award”,
“Best Investor Relations Company”, “Asia’s Best CEO (Investor
Relations)”, “Asia’s Best CFO (Investor Relations)” and “Best
Investor Relations Professional” by Corporate Governance Asia;
and “One of Asia’s Most Honored Companies” and “Best Investor
Relations Professional” by Institutional Investor. Moreover,
the Company was again commended for the high quality of its
annual reports at the “International Annual Report Competition
(ARC) Awards” and “International Galaxy Awards” organized by
MerComm, Inc.

Looking to the future, the Group will continue to be committed
to the highest level of standards, transparency and efficiency in
corporate governance to create greater value for shareholders
and to promote the Group’s healthy development.

AANTH-B-ZFEZ-tFNESRBINRERKRE
EARNINGS AND DIVIDEND PER SHARE OF THE COMPANY FOR 2013-2017

2017 0.36
014
2016 0.22¢4
0.08
2015 -1.56
2014 0.0
0.22(HK$0.27)
2013 0.58
‘ O.Z1(HK$O.%7)
-2 0 2
ARMIT RMB
FREMN (BEARFEHREE
FRORT S RB W)
Earnings per share (including the effect
of asset revaluation and major disposal of
non-core assets/investment)
BT -
Notes:

1. AEAF _F-AFNAA-RHEEFEBREL S,
The Group disposed of its non-beer businesses on 1
September 2015.

2. BB REHEREBEITE,
Adjusted upon rights issue in 2016.

3. A-F-RFRMNFAIRSERET12.30 T/ IBEITE,
Adjusted upon distribution of special dividend at HK$12.30
per share in 2015.

10.08(HK$12.30)

FhPH, RE RIS LM

Total of interim, final and special dividend per share

4 BFARBATF_FT-ARF+TA+T - ATREEEESERBLO%RN, —F—"ENGRERKLH
SERFIRIRA R RN B 5 55 A MR L 1) (Y8151 % RIS 100%) 1T 5,
Since the Company completed the acquisition of 49% stake in CRSB on 11 October 2016,
basic and diluted earnings per share for the year was calculated according to the Company’s
shareholdings before and after the acquisition (51% before acquisition and 100% after the
acquisition).
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SHARE PERFORMANCE

The Company’s closing share price surged by 82.14%
year-on-year to HK$28.05 as of 31 December 2017, which
surpassed the performance of the Hang Seng Index. The market
capitalization amounted to around HK$91.00 billion from
HK$49.96 billion at the end of 2016.

DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

The Group is committed to creating and improving value to pay
back shareholders. The total dividend of the Company reached
RMBO0.14 per share, with a dividend payout ratio of 39%. The
Company will endeavor to maintain a respectable dividend
payout level while preserving healthy cash levels to promote the
sustainable growth of its business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The consolidated turnover of the Group in 2017 was
RMB29,732,000,000. This represents an increase of 3.6%
compared with 2016. The Company completed the acquisition of
a 49% stake in CRSB on 11 October 2016, and the benefit of the
acquisition was fully reflected in 2017. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the Company’s share of CRSB’s profit increased from
51% before 11 October 2016 to 100% in 2017. Thus the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders
increased by 86.8% to RMB1,175,000,000 compared with 2016.
The Group’s earnings before interest and taxation in 2017
increased by 5.4% to RMB1,851,000,000 compared with 2016.

During the year under review, the overall beer market capacity
slightly decreased. Consumers’ growing demand for high quality
products boosted the change of product mix in the beer market,
which increased the share of mid- to high-end products.

In 2017, the Group’s beer sales volume increased by 0.9%
to approximately 11,819,000 kilolitres compared with
2016, outperforming the industry average and capturing a
larger market share. This was mainly contributed to CRSB’s
tailored sales strategies to the local market that improved
an established long-standing co-operative relationship with
distributors; and a revamp of its channels for the construction
of a channel management system to improve efficiency and
competitiveness. The national brand “S7E Snow” accounted for
approximately 90% of the total beer sales volume of the Group.
In 2017, the Group started the campaign to reposition its
brand, which diversified its product portfolio; and continued to
deepen its brand promotion and market expansion, to help the
growth of the overall sales volume of mid- and high-end beers,
which leads to an increase of approximately 2.7% in the overall
average selling price in 2017 compared with 2016. Moreover,
by increasing its production efficiency, improving its energy
conservation and reducing its consumption to absorb the impact
of certain rising costs, such as packaging materials, the Group
was able to maintain its gross profit margin to an adequate level.
The Group also carried out lean sales management, reinforced
its sales capability and increased its sales efficiency in 2017
to further control sales expenses. However, increases in other
operating costs, such as transportation, and the impairment and
provision for production capacity optimization, resulted in an
increase of 4.9% in overall operating expenses compared with
2016.
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During the year under review, CRSB concentrated its resources
on adequate investments in targeted promotions and
advertisements on products to increase its brand recognition.
For the Group’s mid-end “Brave the World” series of products,
the event “Snow Great Expedition, Challenge the Unclimbed by
College Students” strengthened the promotion of the series,
which sustained a robust growth in sales volume. In order to
grasp long term development trends in the industry, the Group
continued to partner with large domestic e-commerce platform
providers during the year under review, to expand its boundaries
into online sales and marketing channels.

The Group continued to endorse its deployment of the
production capacity during the year under review, including the
consolidation of regional production capacity and assets, to
improve profitability in the medium to long term. The impairment
loss recognized for 2017 increased by RMB275,000,000 to
RMB739,000,000 compared with 2016. At the end of 2017,
the Group operated 91 breweries in 25 provinces, directly
administered municipalities and autonomous regions in
Mainland China, with an aggregate annual production capacity
of approximately 22,000,000 kiloliters.

Looking ahead, the beer market will see a continuous upgrade in
consumption, while the high-end beer market will grow rapidly,
with fierce competition expected to continue in the industry.
The Group will proceed with brand repositioning exercises to
enhance its brand portfolio and the competitiveness of its
high-end brands in order to pursue a quality sales growth.
With the increased possibility of abnormal weather conditions,
the Group will take a proactive approach to manage the sales
and production plans to cope with a volatile market capacity
caused by extreme weather conditions. The Group will continue
to examine the competitive environment and market conditions
and carry on with lean sales to enhance the effectiveness
of selling expenses. The Group will also proceed with
organizational restructuring, reinforcing central procurement,
optimizing logistics management and formulating appropriate
medium to long term production capacity optimization plans
to enhance operational efficiency. In some areas, the prices of
certain products will be adjusted moderately to alleviate the
pressure from expected rises in costs, such as the costs of raw
materials, packaging materials and labour. Moreover, the Group
will continue to grow the business organically and through the
evaluation of suitable potential acquisition opportunities, which
will boost synergy effects through mergers and acquisitions. This
will further bolster the Group’s leading position in the market.
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FHERED
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
CAPITAL AND FUNDING

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s consolidated cash and
bank deposits amounted to RMB2,440,000,000. The Group’s
borrowings as at 31 December 2017 were RMB3,470,000,000 with
RMB2,383,000,000 repayable within 1 year, RMB1,086,000,000
repayable after 1 year but within 5 years and RMB1,000,000
repayable after 5 years.

On the basis of the Group’s net borrowings relative to the
shareholders’ funds and non-controlling interests, the Group’s
gearing ratio was approximately at 5.6% as at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: 20.8%).

The Group’s principal assets, liabilities, revenue and payments
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US
dollars. As at 31 December 2017, 2.3% of the Group’s cash and
bank deposit balance was held in Hong Kong dollars, 96.0% in
Renminbi and 1.7% in US dollars; whereas more than 99.9% of
the Group’s borrowings was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
The Group’s borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.
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With healthy operating cash flow, available banking facilities
and standby shareholder’s loans, the Group is able to fulfill its
liquidity requirement.

In 2016, the Company raised approximately HK$9,514,000,000,
before expenses, by way of a rights issue of 811,044,226
shares on the basis of one rights share for every three ordinary
shares at a subscription price of HK$11.73 per rights share.
Approximately HK$9,000,000,000 of the net proceeds was used
up to 31 December 2016. The remaining balance was used during
the year for the settlement of loans from a holding company.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, assets with a carrying value of
RMB79,000,000 (31 December 2016: RMB103,000,000) were
pledged for notes payable.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2017.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a staff size of around
52,000, amongst which more than 99% were employed in the
Chinese Mainland, whilst the rest were mainly in Hong Kong.
Remuneration packages are assessed in accordance with
the nature of job duties, individual performance and market
trends with built-in merit components, paid in the form of cash
bonuses.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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MR. CHEN LANG AGED 52

has been appointed as Chairman of the Board of the Company in August
2012. Mr. Chen was Chief Executive Officer (previously named as Managing
Director) of the Company from January 2009 to August 2012. He is Executive
Director of the Company, Executive Vice President of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited, Director of CRH (Beer) Limited, Director and
Chairman of China Resources Enterprise, Limited as well as the Chairman
of China Resources Snow Breweries (China) Investment Co., Ltd., China
Resources Ng Fung Limited and China Resources Cestbon Beverage (China)
Co., Ltd. He was previously the Director of China Resources (Holdings)
Company Limited and China Resources Company Limited (formerly known
as China Resources National Corporation), the Chief Executive Officer of
China Resources Vanguard Co., Ltd., and Vice Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of China Resources Logic Limited (now renamed as China Resources
Gas Group Limited). Prior to that, he was Chairman and General Manager
of China Resources Development and Investment Co., Limited and was in
charge of a number of substantial investments in Canada and Thailand of
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited. Mr. Chen holds a Bachelor of
Economics degree from Anhui University, China and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of San Francisco, USA. He is
currently the visiting professor of Anhui University, China, Chairman of
China Resources Association for Science and Technology, and Chairman of
Committee on Innovation, Development and Intellectual Property Rights of
China Resources Group. He joined China Resources Company Limited and
China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in 1986 and 1989 respectively.

Al (B %) AM/AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

14} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



RmREREE
Mr. Hou Xiaohai

REFEXE
Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin

EHZED
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

BERBELE EM+AY

TE-REOARZENARBRTEZTNERFNTE. BT T RF=
ARZENLRSERE (PE) ERARLEE, T -_FF-—F+_A%
—EELF+ - ABREAZARNEERREENTIELE, BT _EF
NE-AE-Z-RE-AEFELESEEE (FE) BRARRM O RE L
FERSAEPEREHEHPOLAE, URELHSERE (RPE) BRA
AN RREEE, REEFSETEARKFSITF LM, SERENL
NE, TEE AFEH, REET T -FMALEER,

MR. HOU XIAOHAI AGED 49

has been appointed as Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
in April 2016. He was appointed as general manager of China Resources Snow
Breweries (China) Co., Ltd. in March 2016 and was the director of its sales and
marketing departments from December 2001 to December 2007. He was appointed
as general manager and assistant general manager (also a general manager of its
distribution headquarter) of the branch of China Resources Snow Breweries (China)
Co., Ltd. in Guizhou Province and a general manager of its branch in Sichuan Province
from January 2009 to February 2016. Mr. Hou has a Bachelor of Statistics Degree from
the People’s University of China. He has previously worked in Shougang Corporation,
Gallup Poll and Pepsico. Mr.Hou joined China Resources Group in 2001.
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MR. LAl PO SING, TOMAKIN AGED 51

has been appointed as an Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary of the Company in June 2016. He was appointed as the Finance
Director of the Company in June 2014. He was previously the Audit Director of the
Company. He joined the Company in September 2008. He is currently the Vice President,
the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of China Resources Enterprise,
Limited. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked for international accounting firms in
Hong Kong, and also acted as the financial controller and company secretary of Zhong
An Real Estate Limited, China Oriental Group Company Limited and Hon Po Group
(Lobster King) Limited (now known as China Energy Development Holdings Limited),
which are listed companies on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. Mr. Lai has extensive experience in internal and external auditing, finance
and accounting, regulatory and compliance and company secretarial matters. Mr. Lai
holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a Master of Business Administration degree from the University of
Manchester, UK. He is a Fellow Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales. He is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the UK and of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He
is a Certified Internal Auditor and holds a Certificate in Risk Management Assurance
conferred by the Institute of Internal Auditors. He is also a Certified Information
Systems Auditor of ISACA.

31

IONYNHIAOD ILVHOdHOD
SFEMI




32

EHZED

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

FEMITES

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

FRER &
Mr. Chen Rong

B RE
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank

R4t m+a%

T2 REOARZENARBFERNTESR. BEET T R"FLAKE
TR HEARABRABES, A TRFANARZENZARNFRITE
B BT T-tFOARZTENCEABMBRARFNTES, ZFQRAT
BRRARIMBERABRIRLET. BT -_E—R"F-ARZEIEE (&
H) BRABMSE LG M BEEM SRS S, KEEtGRELEIRA
RARBISEENEENSE, REERTEEERARBRAR, ARBHE
BRABRATRELBHEARS QA FEEREAZRBAF TREEIRM
T, FREFEPRAIMIOIMHSINARE, BIANPEEMR 2T
A2 R, FREET-ZTELFRAAMALE (KH) BRAFL

MR. CHEN RONG AGED 45

has been appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2016. Mr. Chen
was appointed as Director of China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited, in May
2016 and designated as its Non-executive Director in June 2016, and was appointed as
Non-executive Director of China Resources Land Limited in April 2017, both are listed
companies on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was
also appointed as General Manager of the Finance Department of China Resources
(Holdings) Company Limited in February 2016 and was the head of tax management of
the same department. Mr Chen was deputy general manager and chief financial officer
of China Resources Vanguard Company Limited. Mr. Chen has previously worked in
Epson Technical Limited, Walmart China Investment Limited and Fuji Electric Technical
Services Limited. Mr. Chen joined China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited in May
2007. Mr. Chen holds MBA degree from Xi'an Jiaotong University. He is an Intermediate
Accountant and a Certified Tax Agent in China. He is also a non-practicing member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MR. LAl NI HIUM, FRANK AGED 56

has been re-designated from an Executive Director to a Non-Executive Director of
the Company since June 2016. He was an Executive Director and the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company between June 2009 and May 2016, and the Company Secretary
between August 2009 and May 2016. Mr. Lai was previously the Executive Director,
Non-executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary of China
Resources Microelectronics Limited. Prior to that, he served as the Chief Financial
Officer of Eagle Brand Holdings Ltd. (now known as Nam Cheong Limited), which is a
company listed on the Singapore Exchange and before then, he served as the Executive
Director and Chief Executive Officer of Logic International Holdings Ltd. (now known
as China Resources Gas Group Limited). He was appointed as Executive Director and
Deputy Chief Executive Officer of Dah Chong Hong Holdings Limited, which is a listed
company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, in June 2016
and became its Chief Executive Officer in March 2017. Mr. Lai obtained a Bachelor of
Commerce degree from the University of Western Australia and a Graduate Diploma
in Business and Administration from the Curtin University of Technology of Western
Australia. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of CPA Australia.
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MR. HOUANG TAI NINH AGED 64

has been a Director of the Company since 1988. He is also a Director and Chairman of
Sino Resources and Energy Holdings Limited, Sino Petrochem Development Limited,
Sino Mining Investments Limited and a Director of China & Overseas Resources
Limited. Mr. Houang obtained his Bachelor of Business Studies degree from the
Polytechnic of North Staffordshire, United Kingdom.
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DR. LI KA CHEUNG, ERIC FCPA(PRACTISING), GBS, OBE, JP
AGED 64

has been a Director of the Company since March 2003. He is Senior Partner of Li,
Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising), member of the Thirteenth
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and former member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. Dr. Li holds
directorships in a number of listed companies including Sun Hung Kai Properties
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited,
Transport International Holdings Limited and Wong's International Holdings Limited. Dr.
Liwas a Director of RoadShow Holdings Limited.
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DR. CHENG MO CHI, MOSES GBM, GBS, OBE, JP AGED 68

has been a Director of the Company since November 2005. Dr. Cheng is a practicing
solicitor and a consultant of Messrs. PC. Woo & Co. after serving as its senior partner
from 1994 to 2015. Dr. Cheng was a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong. He
is the founder chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now the
Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus. He is now also serving as chairman of the
Insurance Authority and chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities and
Futures Commission. Dr. Cheng currently holds directorships in K. Wah International
Holdings Limited, China Mobile Limited, Towngas China Company Limited, Kader
Holdings Company Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Guangdong Investment
Limited and Tian An China Investments Company Limited, all being listed companies in
Hong Kong. He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of ARA Asset Management
Limited, a company whose shares were formerly listed on the Singapore Exchange.
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MR. BERNARD CHARNWUT CHAN GBS, JP AGED 53

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He is the Executive Director
and President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and Asia Insurance Company
Limited. He acts as an Advisor of Bangkok Bank (China) Company Limited. Apart from
the roles in the business community, Mr. Chan serves as a Hong Kong Deputy to The
National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China and the Convenor of the
Non-official Members of the Executive Council of the Hong Kong SAR. He is a former
member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Chan is the Chairman of
the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, the Committee on Reduction of Salt and
Sugar in Food and the Steering Committee on Restored Landfill Revitalisation Funding
Scheme. He also serves as the Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
and a council member of the Oxfam Hong Kong. In addition, Mr. Chan holds directorship
in Chen Hsong Holdings Limited and Yau Lee Holdings Limited which are listed in Hong
Kong. Mr.Chan was a Director of City e-solutions Limited.
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MR. SIU KWING CHUE, GORDON GBS, CBE, JP AGED 72

has been a Director of the Company since November 2006. He had been a career civil
servant for over 36 years before retiring from the civil service in 2002. Mr. Siu rose to
the rank of Secretary, Government Secretariat in 1993 and served a number of high
ranking government positions, namely the Secretary for Economic Services, Secretary
for Transport, Head of Central Policy Unit and eventually retired from his last posting
as Secretary for Planning, Environment & Lands. Mr. Siu was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited and Transport International
Holdings Limited.
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STEP 1:
Risk ldentification

Risk Analysis, Evaluation

MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY

The Board believes that risk management is an integral part
of corporate governance. Effective and efficient corporate risk
management will facilitate the Group’s business development
and operation by setting the appropriate risk appetite,
maintaining an acceptable risk level and more importantly,
proactively responding to risks. It therefore helps protect
shareholder value and safeguard the Group’s reputation. Through
putting in place proper risk management control over the
Group’s business and carrying out regular reviews and updates,
the Group strives to reduce the likelihood and the effect of risks
before they occur, and deal with problems effectively when they
arise. While the Group’s risk management is the responsibility
of every management team member and is embedded in the
business planning and daily operation of the Group’s business,
our risk management process is based on a decentralized model
with a centralized monitoring system. The Group’s strategy is to
maintain a streamlined risk management process to identify,
analyze and mitigate various risks in an efficient and effective
manner.

CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Risk monitoring
Reporting on regular and ad hoc basis

BUSINESS UNIT
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STEP 3 :
Risk Monitoring and

and Mitigation Performance Evaluation
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CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT

STEP ONE: RISK IDENTIFICATION

We identify and assess risks both at the Group and business
unit levels, and incorporate risk management into our business
planning. At the end of each year, the Group’s business unit
undertakes a review of potential risks which fall within its
business and operation area. The Group’s business unit then
performs risk reviews including risk mapping, analysis and
evaluation of their probability of occurrence and impact.
Identified risks are reported together with the explanation of its
nature and proposed risk management strategies to the Group
during the business plan review session at the beginning of each
year. In addition to the annual exercise, our regular reporting
system of the Group’s business unit also facilitates ongoing risk
identification and the reporting of risks.

STEP TWO: RISK ANALYSIS, EVALUATION AND
MITIGATION

When risks are identified, the assigned risk owner is responsible
for analyzing the probability of their occurrence and potential
impact. Priority will be given to risks with high probability
and serious negative impact. The risk owner then designs
appropriate procedures and actions for risk mitigation and acts
accordingly. Implementation cost is also taken into account
when devising the action plan. During the implementation, we
also emphasize the balance of risks and benefits to ensure long
term business success.

STEP THREE: RISK MONITORING AND PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION

After risk identification, analysis, evaluation and mitigation,
evaluation reports are submitted to the Group through the
regular reporting mechanism. To prevent the same risks from
occurring again, preventive actions and procedures to improve
operational efficiency are also incorporated into the risk
management and internal control systems. In addition, our
Internal Audit Function undertakes independent reviews on risk
management and internal control systems, and our management
is responsible for ensuring appropriate actions which are taken
to rectify any control deficiencies highlighted in the audit reports
within a reasonable period of time.
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ESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPAT

The Group believes sustainable development is the cornerstone
of a company’s success. As a leading beer enterprise in China,
we consistently carry out development together with our
country and society, placing great emphasis on corporate
social responsibility which is fully integrated into our corporate
strategies, major decisions and daily business operations.
While delivering quality products, we spare no effort in making
contributions to various aspects like the social economy, the
community and the environment. We are committed to becoming
a trusted and beloved beer enterprise, and endeavoring to create
a better future.

The Group believes that its concept of “Better Life Together”
goes beyond achieving an outstanding operating performance.
The Group will continue to evolve and make better changes
for stakeholders, society and the environment. In June 2017,
the Company published its first Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, which disclosed relevant information about
the Group’s performance in social, environmental and other
aspects for 2016.

COMMUNITY CARE

The Group places great emphasis on community services
and social welfare activities. With its business strength
and extensive business network, the Group encourages its
customers, staff and suppliers to work together to care for the
community in need and to build a caring and inclusive society.

In March 2017, the Group’s flagship campaign “Snow Great
Expedition, Challenge the Unclimbed by College Students” was
launched across the country. This campaign was part of the “Snow
Great Expedition” series organized by the Group for the 13th
year in a row. In June 2017, a total of 23 brave undergraduates
successfully conquered an unclimbed 5,1565-metre-high peak in
Diging in Yunnan Province. The campaign conveyed the spirit of
“ambitious, challenging and innovative”.

LIMITED
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In order to enhance the knowledge of the Group’s staff about
reforestation and its ecological value, the Group participated in
a tree planting activity at Kadoorie Farm and Botanic Garden in
Hong Kong in April 2017. Through planting tree seedlings on the
hillside, the staff increased their awareness of environmental
protection and realized the ambition of nature conservation.

In June 2017, the Company was granted the “Oxfam Corporate
Donor Award” by Oxfam, a Hong Kong charity organization. The
Group was recognized for its work as a corporate donor of Oxfam
in helping impoverished people become self-reliant.

In November 2017, around 80 staff of the Group and their relatives
participated in a charity walk at Tseung Kwan O Waterfront
Promenade in Hong Kong for children with congenital heart
disease. The charity walk encouraged children and their families
to overcome challenges and to build a better and a more inclusive
society together. The event helped to promote a healthy lifestyle
with exercises support for the Group’s staff and the participants.

ENVIRONMENT, HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group has always placed great emphasis on the management
and control of its environment, health and safety (“EHS”). The
Group has a designated department to continuously strengthen
awareness towards potential safety hazards and prevent
underlying risks. In 2017, the Group published eight sets of in-
house rules to further enhance the management of relevant
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organizational structure and to specify rights and responsibilities.
The Group also started a project to establish an information-based
platform to conduct on-line, real-time monitoring and control of
key risks, process control of key sections and emergency-aided
decision making for major events in the long run.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, ENERGY CONSERVATION
AND EMISSION REDUCTION

The Group has always been committed to protecting the
environment and continuously applying internal control indicators
that are stricter than the national or local government pollution
emission standards. The Group has a sound accountability system
for environmental protection, energy conservation and emission
reduction for fulfilling its responsibilities.

In 2017, CRSB carried out over 200 environmental protection,
energy conservation and emission reduction projects and
invested over RMB87 million, such as phasing out coal-burning
boilers to switch to natural gas and steam from external
sources (“coal-to-gas conversion”), sewage deodorization and
noise control. By carrying out efficient energy conservation and
emission reduction management, the Group achieved a decrease
of over 10% year-on-year in comprehensive energy consumption
per unit in 2017. In terms of pollutant emissions, the Group kept
emissions below the standard level, and also strived to further
reduce emissions. The proportion of clean energy use was
increased by phasing out polluting and high-energy-consuming
equipment and by adjusting the structure of energy use.

Since 2015, the Group has been working on implementing coal-
to-gas conversion projects. By the end of 2017, the Group had
invested over RMB130 million in the relevant special projects,
and over 80 coal-burning boilers at more than 30 production
plants were phased out. In 2017, the emissions in sulfur dioxide
(S02), nitrogen oxide (NOx) and carbon dioxide (CO2) were reduced
by approximately 35%, 20% and over 10% respectively compared
with 2016.

To further improve the management standard of environmental
protection, energy conservation and emission reduction, the
Group conducts systematic assessments and unannounced
inspections on an ongoing basis. Besides carrying out self-
inspections by regional companies and factories, the designated
department of the Group also conducted unannounced
inspections on the EHS aspects at its subsidiaries of 15 regional
companies and 26 production factories, as well as the on-site
EHS inspections for certain factories relocation projects.
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PROMOTION OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group believes that promotion is another important topic
of environmental protection. During the year under review, the
Group organized the “Open Days of Breweries”, inviting teachers
and students from Xichang University in Sichuan Province and
Liaocheng University in Shandong Province to visit CRSB’s
local production factories so they could learn more about
the Group’s procedures for beer production and waste water
treatment. In addition, to raise the awareness of environmental
protection among its staff, the Group participated in a number of
nationwide environmental protection campaigns in 2017, such as
“World Environment Day”, “National Energy Conservation Week”
and “National Low-Carbon Day”.

In November 2017, China Resources Snow Breweries (Henan)
Co., Ltd. and China Resources Snow Breweries (Sichuan) Co.,
Ltd. were awarded the “Hong Kong Green Awards - Green
Management Award (Large Corporation) — Corporate — Merit” for
the first time by the Hong Kong Green Council in recognition of
the Group’s efforts in implementing environmental protection

policy.
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OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

The Group continues to apply the management philosophy
to production operations, which features a people-oriented
approach and development in a safe manner. During the year
under review, there were no new occupational diseases. To
enhance the accountability of respective responsibilities on
EHS and the establishment of a sound EHS accountability
system, staff at different levels were required to sign a letter
of accountability on EHS in 2017. The letter clearly outlined the
production safety indicators and the responsibilities of each
position and staff member. Moreover, all staff participated in
safety observation activities related to identification of hazard
sources and factors as well as dangerous behaviour to remind
them how to follow procedural control and to regulate their
safety practices. By carrying out unannounced inspections
and reviewing video surveillance and inspections, the Group
investigated and rectified potential safety hazards. During the
year under review, the designated department of the Group’s
headquarter conducted investigations and inspections for safety
management of liquid ammonia, forklift, hazardous chemical
substances, transportation logistics, construction projects,
etc., to improve the corresponding management standard in the
breweries. The Group kept improving, optimizing and upgrading
its work on the management system for safety production, the
facilities of protection against occupational hazards and further
improved the working environment. In 2017, CRSB set-up a
special fund of approximately RMB37.6 million for production
safety to improve the overall standards of safety production
management and technical equipment.

Regarding occupational health, CRSB is dedicated to
protecting the health of its staff, and the Group implemented
an accountability system for human resources units and
improved the system for the monitoring, prevention and control
of occupational hazards. In 2017, the Group reported and
regularly monitored dangerous hazards such as noise and dust
in the working environment. Various technical initiatives were
taken to improve the working environment and create a healthy
workplace for staff. Moreover, a wide range of publicity and
education programs on occupational health were launched,
aimed at enhancing staff’s sense of law and social responsibility
as well as raising their awareness of self-protection. When
new staff signed a labour contract, the Group fulfilled all
of its duties by informing them of the potential hazards of
occupational diseases and buying work-related injury insurance
for them in accordance with the law. For those staff who were
engaged in operations that could cause occupational diseases,
occupational health examinations were conducted before, during
and after their employment.
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The Group attaches great importance on safety education. In
2017, CRSB organized more than 5,200 training sessions on
safety education, attracting more than 170,000 attendees.
More than 550 emergency drills were conducted with more
than 17,000 attendees. A total of 210 training sessions on
occupational safety and health were organized, attracting
approximately 17,000 attendees. The Group enhanced its
rescue capability through daily exercises, trainings, technical
competitions, experience exchanges and simulated combat
exercises. A “one-file-per-staff” occupational health record was
also set up. During the year under review, CRSB attained 100%
in the coverage of training sessions on safety education, health
examinations for the prevention and treatment of occupational
diseases, notifications of occupational hazards in the workplace
and the setting of warning signs. Moreover, the Group continued
the training, appraisal and certification of key personnel.
Business executives and safety management staff at different
levels at CRSB have all obtained qualification certificates in
safety management. At the end of 2017, approximately 130 staff
were certified as PRC registered safety engineers, and all staff
who engaged in special operations possessed valid qualification
certificates.

FOOD SAFETY AND PRODUCT QUALITY

The Group improves quality standard system and food safety
system on an ongoing basis by ensuring production follows
stringent technical quality standards to guarantee product
quality. In 2017, 18 technical quality standards were revised and
more than 100 new standards were established as accumulated.
During the year under review, the designated department of the
Group’s headquarter carried out food safety inspections among
certain breweries. The inspections focused on disqualified
products management, products return management, customer
complaints management, etc.

CRSB is committed to the research and development of
diversified and specialty products. In 2017, the Group launched
its new product line, “Concept Series”, which enhanced the
overall style of various products including “Brave the World”,
“Draft Beer”, “Male Opera Mask” and “Female Opera Mask”
with the theme “You Define Your Future” The new product line
enhanced the overall brand image and diversified customer
experience. Moreover, “Snow Ale Beer” was selected as one
of the Top 10 New Wine Products (Beer Category) at the 2016
“Qingzhuo Awards” by the China Alcoholic Drinks Association
during the year under review.
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To ensure systematic, scientific and standardized management,
the Group continuously carried out certifications to its
management systems, including the quality management system
(1IS09001), environmental management certification (1ISO14000)
and food safety management system (1S022000).

Moreover, the Group facilitated extended quality management
policies during the year under review to ensure product quality
at the source, and to stabilize and manage product quality
through the technical quality control points involved in the
suppliers’ production chains as well as the management of
factories’ production quality feedback and improvement. The
Group also introduced real-time monitoring of the key control
points in the production process to make sure the production
process complied with food safety standards. To continuously
improve the product quality, the Group completed self-developed
projects, which have been successfully applied for patents,
involving “the research on the precise quality control technology
in constant valves for beer bottling and the development of
supporting platform system” and “automatic elimination of
hyperoxia beer system”.

During the year under review, the Group’s beer products had a
100% pass rate both in the quality test and the spot tests by
the National Safety Supervision and Inspection, respectively.
Regarding the quality management system of our internal
control, the comparable quality, outlook and integrated quality
were again at the forefront among Chinese domestic enterprises,
which fully reflected the Group’s excellent quality management
level.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Staff is one of the most valuable assets of the Group and a core
driving force for the successful development of the business.
The Group takes a proactive approach to recruiting and retaining
competent people; stringently executes national and local
laws, regulations and local policies related to remuneration
management; moves forward with the establishment of a
market-oriented remuneration mechanism; and improves the
management of internal remuneration in an impartial manner.
Various sets of internal labour and employment policies were
formulated and enhanced in 2017.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to promoting staff training and career
development by organizing a wide range of staff training
activities. During the year under review, CRSB’s average staff
training hours reached 18 hours, more than the average of 17
hours in 2016, and the coverage rate of full-time employee
training was 100%. The Group offered training programs covering
various aspects. For example, the Group once again organized
the “Rising Stars” training program for staff who were newly
recruited graduates. The training program helped the graduates
adjust to work life. In addition, training programs focusing on
sales, finance and other functions were organized in support
of the Group’s strategic transformation. A series of mid-level
training programs were also organized for professional staff in
key positions to strengthen their specialization, professional
skills and business support capabilities. Moreover, to enhance
the work skills of junior staff, various training programs were
organized, including the management system on channel,
distribution, sales and marketing, and apprenticeship schemes.
All these training programs fully reflected the Group’s emphasis
on upgrading the skills of staff at all levels.

To increase the efficiency and scope of training, an online
training management system and a mobile learning system were
introduced during the year under review to cover all the business
staff, in addition to the continuous optimization of “i-Learning”,
an online learning system.

Staff Care

The Group places great emphasis on creating an inclusive and
caring working environment. Since its establishment in 20086,
“Snow Relief Fund” has been assisting staff and their families
who have difficulties with their livelihood or health by way
of internal donations. During the year under review, the fund
provided aids to about 30 staff.

The Group’s senior management continued their interaction with
frontline staff and conducted in-depth communications with
them to find out about their needs, strengthen team building
and deepen the management of staff care. In addition, the Group
carried out a “Cool Gift” campaign during the peak production
period in the summer, where heat stroke prevention products
were distributed to frontline production workers. Meanwhile, the
“Running Health” campaign helped promote a work-life balance
to improve the physical and mental health of all staff.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

To ensure the high service level of suppliers, through the
knowledge and compliance test, site visits and annual integrated
assessments, the Group continued to optimize the phase-
out mechanism for suppliers. Suppliers who do not pass the
assessment will be prohibited from co-operation with the Group
for 5 years. The Group has evaluated and renewed the supplier
list based on the assessment results. During the year under
review, about 200 suppliers were phased out and about 170 new
suppliers were introduced. In addition to updating the supplier
list, stringent internal guidelines were established for supply
chain management. The process for co-operation with suppliers
are assessed monthly with regard to seven indicators: quality,
timeliness, accuracy, declined orders, returned goods, violation
behaviours and flawed products.

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION AND CONSUMER
DATA PROTECTION

To enhance its customer service quality, the Group established
a rapid market complaint response system, utilizing a unified
national customer service hotline to standardize the process
of handling customer complaints. The Group also improved its
factory production information management, to trace production
information rapidly and accurately. Consumers can enjoy high
quality services from the Group’s excellent customer service
system.

The Group constantly improves production quality as well as
service standards to continuously raise customer satisfaction.
In recent years, the Group improved the recycling method and
optimized the management of the sources of beer bottles.
The Group also enhanced the supervision of the production
process and reduced the chances of producing beer containing
impurities. In 2017, the Group once again carried out the “No
Inverted Bottles in Packaging Lines” scheme to minimize the risk
of gas leakage during the production process.

Protection of consumer privacy forms an integral part of
the customer relationship management and an essential
section of the service process. In 2017, the Group continued
to optimize its customer relationship management system,
and revised and supplemented relevant rules and procedures.
By means of information encryption and permission settings,
an information isolation strategy was executed in different
regions and departments and at different management levels
in the process of using information to make sure no consumer
information was disclosed or lost. Relevant staff are required to
comply with China’s confidentiality legislation and the “System
Governing Confidentiality”, and to sign a “Letter of Undertaking
on Confidentiality” to fulfill their duty of confidentiality and to
ensure information security.
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MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY’S
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

1.

A balanced portfolio of Board members by age and length
of Board services. Besides, the directors draw a vast
experience and diversified knowledge across different
disciplines, including the areas of trading and commerce,
accounting and finance, legal, banking and civil services.

EE2RSFH

Length of Board services
106 LA : 5

less than 10 years: 5
10FskA L5

10 years or above: 5

Board committees are a vital part of the Board
effectiveness. To facilitate more professional advices
of various areas in the committees, the members of
Nomination Committee, Compensation Committee and
Audit Committee are mainly constituted by independent
non-executive directors and each committee is chaired by
a different independent non-executive director.

In 2017, a majority of the independent non-executive
directors, together with executive director and Chief
Financial Officer and management, have been arranged
a site visit to a brewery in Beijing to discuss about risk
management at operational level.
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It is the firm belief of the Company that a good and solid
corporate governance framework is essential to the successful
growth of the Company and the enhancement of shareholder
value. The Company is committed to attaining and maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and adopts principles
of corporate governance emphasising a quality Board,
accountability to all stakeholders, open communication and fair
disclosure.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

On 8 April 2005, the Company adopted the Corporate Governance
Practice Manual (“CG Manual”). The CG Manual which was
revised on 31 March 2009, 18 November 2010, 21 March 2012,
7 December 2015 and 18 March 2016, incorporates almost
all the Code Provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”) and includes the
implementation details for the Code Provisions and, where
appropriate, the Recommended Best Practices. The CG Manual
can be downloaded from the Company’s website and copies are
available on request to the Company Secretary.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions set out in
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, save
and except the following:

In respect of Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all the
non-executive directors are not appointed for a fixed term.
The Board does not believe in any arbitrary term of office. The
current arrangement will give the Company sufficient flexibility
to organize the composition of the Board to serve the needs of
the Group. Further, the Articles of Association of the Company
requires that one third of the directors (including executive
and non-executive directors) shall retire each year and every
director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The directors to retire each year shall be those
appointed by the Board during the year and those who have been
longest in office since their election or re-election. A retiring
director is eligible for re-election.

In respect of Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, the Board did
not have a policy concerning diversity of Board members but the
Board is actively considering the adoption of the relevant policy.

In respect of Code Provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, the Company
has not provided all members of the Board with monthly updates
to enable the Board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties. However, the Company has based on business
situation, provided to the Board from time to time, updated
business information to enable the Board as a whole and each
director to discharge their duties.
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In respect of Code Provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the
Company did not have formal letters of appointment for
directors. However, the directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years in accordance with
the Articles of Association of the Company. In addition, the
directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out in “A
Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry
and “Guidelines for Directors”, and, if applicable, “Guide for
Independent Non-Executive Directors” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors in performing their duties and
responsibilities as directors of the Company. Besides, the
directors are required to comply with the requirements under
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements.

In respect of Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, Mr. Chen Lang,
the Chairman could not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 25 May 2017 due to business appointments.

In addition to meet the requirements of the Listing Rules, the
inclusion of the Corporate Governance Report in this Annual
Report is intended to keep our shareholders abreast of the
corporate governance practices of the Company and their
development throughout the reporting year and to invite our
shareholders’ views thereon.

THE BOARD

The Board represents shareholders in managing the Company’s
affairs. The directors recognise their responsibilities to enhance
shareholder value and to conduct themselves in accordance
with their duty of care and integrity.

The major issues which are brought before the Board for their
decisions include:

1. direction of the operational strategies of the Group;

2. setting the policies relating to key business and financial
objectives of the Company;

3. monitoring the performance of the management;

B

approval of material acquisitions, investments,
divestments, disposal of assets or any significant capital
expenditure of the Group;

5. ensuring a prudent and effective risk management and
internal control systems;

6. review of the financial performance and results of the
Company; and

7. recommendation to shareholders of the Company on final
dividend and the declaration of any interim or special
dividends.
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code, and
in this regard the duties of the Board shall include:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and the senior
management;

3.  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as referred
to in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

. approval of the Corporate Governance Report of the
Company; and

. review of the results of the internal audit work on the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that period. The financial statements are prepared
and presented to enable a clear and balanced assessment of the
financial position of the Group. Regular management reports on
the financial position and prospects of the Group are reviewed
by the Executive Committee to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of the performance of the Company.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2017, and up to the
date of this Report, there was no change to the membership of
the Board.
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As at the date of this Report, the Board comprises 10 directors,
including three executive directors (which contain the Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer), two
non-executive directors and five independent non-executive
directors. The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 30 to 35 of this Annual Report and can also be found on
the Company’s website. The relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships)
if any, among members of the Board are disclosed. There is
no such relationship as between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the Company
has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive directors confirming his independence from the
Company, and considers all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

The experience and views of our independent non-executive
directors are held in high regard and contribute to the effective
direction of the Group. Throughout the year of 2017, the Company
complied with the requirements under the Listing Rules by
maintaining the proportion of its independent non-executive
directors to at least one third of the total members of the Board.

The Company has put in place a tailored induction programme
for its newly appointed directors. Continuing development and
information are provided to the directors to keep them abreast
of the latest developments involving the Group’s business and
operations.

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. Appointments
are first considered by the Nomination Committee. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put to
the full Board for decision.
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All directors (including executive and non-executive directors)
are not appointed for a fixed term. The Board does not believe
in any arbitrary term of office and would like to retain sufficient
flexibility to organise the composition of the Board to serve the
needs of the Group. All directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
following their appointment and at least once every three years
on a rotation basis. The Articles of Association of the Company
require that one-third of the directors (including executive and
non-executive directors) shall retire each year. The directors who
are required to retire each year shall be those appointed by the
Board during the year and those who have been longest in office
since their election or re-election. A retiring director is eligible
for re-election.

During the year of 2017, the positions of the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer were held separately. The role of
Chairman was held by Mr. Chen Lang and Mr. Hou Xiaohai held
the position of Chief Executive Officer. The segregation of duties
of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a clear
distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage the Board
and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to manage the
Company’s business. The respective responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are more fully set out
in the CG Manual.

Mr. Chen Lang, the Chairman could not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2017 due to
business appointments. The Chief Executive Officer and either
the chairman or at least one member of the Audit Committee,
Compensation Committee and Nomination Committee attended
the annual general meeting to ensure effective communication
with the shareholders of the Company. Separate resolution was
proposed at the annual general meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including re-election of each retiring director
and was put to vote at the meeting by way of poll. Detailed
procedures for conducting a poll were explained at the meeting.

The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Between these regular
meetings, the Board meets to discuss and consider major issues
(whether or not required by the Listing Rules) and also on other
occasions when Board decisions are required. With respect
to regular meetings of the Board, directors usually receive at
least 14 days prior written notice of the meeting and an agenda
with supporting Board papers no less than 3 days prior to the
meeting. With respect to other meetings called, directors are
given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances. The directors have full access to information
on the Group and independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the directors.
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During the year of 2017, 6 meetings (including meetings by
way of circulation of written resolutions) were held by the
Board. The attendance of the directors at general meeting(s),
Board meeting(s), Audit Committee meeting(s), Compensation

x: Committee meeting(s) and Nomination Committee meeting(s)
held in 2017 is set out in the table below:
REBFRS g2 BRZERS  FMER:  REZERS
Annual Board Audit Compensation Nomination
General Meeting (S HEREH Committee Committee Committee
(SWERRH Meeting(s) (SWHERE (SUHERE (2NERAR
Meeting attended // Meeting(s)  Meeting(s)  Meeting(s)
attended // TR Hheld) attended /'  attended,/  attended /
217X Hheld) R S W ETREheld) #4TAHheld) 21TR¥held)
1T EZE Executive Directors
BREAEAE Mr. Chen Lang 0/1 414 0/0 2/2
BERLE Mr. Hou Xiaohai il 414 0/0 2/2
BEBEEE Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin 1/1 /4 0/0 2/2 171
Je$1fTEE Non-Executive Directors
%A Mr. Chen Rong 0/1 4/4 0/0 2/2
L it Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0/1 /4 0/0 2/2
3437 3k 417 EE Independent Non-Executive Directors
ERTRE Mr. Houang Tai Ninh 171 44 0/0 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
ZRREEL Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 11 4/4 0/0 22 22 202 11
BESEL Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 0/1 4/4 0/0 2/2 212 2/2
BREREAE Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan 11 4/4 0/0 2/2 2/2 11
FmELE Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 1/1 4/4 0/0 2/2 2/2 171
“E-tFENFLRE
Total number of meetings held in 2017 1 6 2 20 1

MHE -

Notes:
R: T Bl Regular Meeting
S: FFRI2 1 Special Meeting

W: FERILE Written Resolutions

(1) FHZALRW, HEP—RUASWPE#T, ER—

RABERYE LB,

Among the Compensation Committee resolutions, one was passed by way of physical meeting and one was passed by way of written

resolutions.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company has put in place an on-going training and
professional development program for directors.

Each newly appointed director would receive an induction
package covering the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. The Company also provides
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the directors’
knowledge and skill.

All directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has sent reading materials
to directors on regulatory updates or information relevant to the
Company or its business.

In 2017, a majority of the independent non-executive directors,
together with executive director and Chief Financial Officer and
accompanied by the management, have been arranged a site
visit to a brewery in Beijing to discuss about risk management at
operational level.
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The Company has received from all directors records of their
continuous professional development trainings during the year.
Details of which are set out in below table:

BT lLRRZ2%E
Type of Continuous Professional Development
B dEWTS. FRARE QTR
&/ B4k BitiE HUEZz5H
FFHITL. KRR 45 BRI R A
SR RIEBIA Reading regulatory
Receiving training, updates or
attending and/or giving information relevant to
talks at seminar and/or the Company
conference and/or forums or its business
#ITEE Executive Directors
FREASE & Mr. Chen Lang v/ v/
wmEBEE Mr. Hou Xiaohai v v
REFLEE Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin v/ v/
JE#{TEE Non-Executive Directors
B e Mr. Chen Rong v/ v/
BRI Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank v v
34537 e 4T EE Independent Non-Executive Directors
BATRA Mr. Houang Tai Ninh v v/
FREFE T Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric v v/
MREEHEL Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses v v
e B4 Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan v v/
AR S A Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon v v/

EE2RN
BAEES TAMN BHFUSRES RIEE

YA

NAIMERME, BRI TN AEE TR

ETRM:

(a)

—EBEESNIL T TARERME
?$ NAlE TR ERE, £2
SBERITERS. MBSER
V?J\A REBZE RS N F
2. ST EZE RS FEER
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While the Board retains at all times full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company, certain responsibilities of the
Board are delegated as follows:

(a) Committees — various committees have been established
by the Board to administer certain specified functions
of the Company’s affairs. The main committees include:
the Executive Committee, the Finance Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Compensation Committee. The terms of reference of the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Compensation Committee which
set out, among other things, the duties, functions and
composition of these committees are set out in the CG
Manual and available on the Company’s website; and

(b) Chief Executive Officer — the day-to-day management of
the Company’s business is delegated to the Chief Executive
Officer who is accountable to the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chairman:  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh (Independent Non-Executive
Director)
Members: Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan,

Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon (all are Independent
Non-Executive Directors) and Mr. Lai Po Sing,
Tomakin (Executive Director)

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and to make
recommendation after such review and to assess the suitability
and qualification of any proposed director candidate. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee are then put
forward for consideration and adoption, where appropriate, by
the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee
setting out its duties and procedures was revised on 21 March
2012 and 7 December 2015, and are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Chairman:  Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon (Independent Non-
Executive Director)
Members:  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric and Dr.

Cheng Mo Chi, Moses (all are Independent Non-
Executive Directors)

The duties of the Compensation Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure of remuneration of directors and senior management,
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on remuneration and determining the specific
remuneration packages for all directors and senior management.
The terms of reference of the Compensation Committee setting
out its duties and procedures was revised on 21 March 2012 and
7 December 2015, and are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The remuneration of the directors and senior executives
is determined with reference to the performance and
responsibilities of the individual, the performance of the Group,
prevailing market conditions and remuneration benchmarks
from comparable companies. Directors and employees also
participate in bonus arrangements based on the performance of
the Group and the individual.
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During the year under review, the Compensation Committee met
once and passed one written resolutions on matters including:

. recommendations on the directors fees to the Board.

. approval of the remuneration packages of the directors of
the Company.

. review of the incentive award to the senior management of
the subsidiary of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman: Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Independent Non-Executive

Director)
Members:  Mr. Houang Tai Ninh, Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses and
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan (all are Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

One of the members of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. No member of this Committee is a
member of the former or existing auditors of the Company. The
membership of the Audit Committee has complied with the
Listing Rules requirement that the majority of its members
must be independent and one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualification. The existing terms of reference of the
Audit Committee which was revised on 18 November 2010, are
modeled on “A Guide for Effective Audit Committee” issued by
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and have
also adopted the principles set out in the CG Code for the time
being in force. Pursuant to the amendments to Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules, the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
was further revised on 21 March 2012 and 7 December 2015,
and are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The duties of the Audit Committee include considering and
making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors, review of the
Company’s financial information and oversight of the Company’s
financial report system and internal control procedures.
During the year under review, the Audit Committee met on two
occasions. The work of the Audit Committee in 2017 included
reviews of:

. the external auditor’s report to the Audit Committee in
respect of 2016 audit;

. the 2016 annual report and annual results announcement;

57

IDONVYNHIAOD ILvHOdHOD
FKEMI




58

pccs L\ﬂi He
[F) &=
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

. MYZBIN —_E—EFFIHRRES
%

. RIEALERS

. —tFFR RS KPS

- MEERIASIRE

« SHRBEZBOAFMRIRLH
&

- RHEE2TRUMS
R, RIRFHME

SCHRERBE 5 M B &
2REB R,

F?Eiifﬁ\] TR A KGRI AZIID
AIFARE

HZEASBEERARNRRIZEINNERI Kk
M, FRERLSBEMNSICRANAIZN
IR AR TIE AR S T IR T 1,
My ZBRINREEEE T —tF+ A
—t+—HIEFENMFIREROBREEME
HHFERETESINEFIRNA IR XS
MikE, TEBMFE, mMARZHRIDS A
4 AR™M11,000,0007T (ZF—~
F£. Y AERM11,000,0007T), HELIFF&
REFIMNOER (ZF—XFE: HAARD
1,000,0007T),

EFEHRZRETN

EET-_T—tF+_A=1T—HBHEELR
AES BN, ERFREBTEFETO
TNESSHRETHE. —TTRFHAN
B, ARARMAT "ERSIESRZTN
(AR BTN, & £ #H b
THrE " AT AERIESR ZirESTN"
(ATE® gl B2ER, T-F
EREFOARE. ZETELFOAMNBE R
ZENF=ZA=+—H, EF2B%R #HtE
RBREANERST AT E EET =
ZENF=A=+t—H., ZT—ZFF+—A
Jr/\E&:EE EF+T-ALBBRET.

SF WP B IE 2552 528 1 MR BRHLIE th
Fﬁ?/\%lﬁ EAL, ’@%Kﬁlmﬂ?ﬁ%/\
RARAEMASEANSHERNAL. EET
)”‘J%?KEI’JPI%\E B T AR A ST NFT 2SR
., Z2ARBENR, 2REECHINE
ECFEEF+_A=t—BHUENFER—
B8 ST HR O ST N R AT DI 3 e 18 E A I

. audit strategy memorandum in respect of the 2017 audit
by the external auditor;

. connected party transactions;
. the 2017 interim report and interim results announcement;
. the reports of internal audit activities;

. the staffing and resources of the Group’s Internal Audit
Department; and

. the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
functions.

During the reporting year, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor on two occasions.

The Audit Committee has considered the performance and
independence of the external auditor of the Company. The Audit
Committee concludes that the independence of the external
auditor of the Company has not been compromised by non-audit
services performed for the Group. The statement by the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities relating to the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 871 to 92.
During the year under review, audit fees paid and payable to the
Company’s external auditor amount to approximately RMB11
million (2016: approximately RMB11 million); no fees related to
non-audit services was paid (2016: approximately RMB1 million).

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The interests held by the directors in the Company’s securities
as at 31 December 2017 are disclosed in the Directors’ Report
on pages 68 to 70 of this Annual Report. On 8 April 2005,
the Company has adopted a Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions (“Code of Ethics”) which incorporates the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The
Code of Ethics has been amended, approved and reconfirmed
by the Board on 6 April 2006, 4 April 2007, 31 March 2008 and
further revised on 31 March 2009, 18 November 2010, and 7
December 2015 respectively. The prohibitions on securities
dealing and disclosure requirements in the Code of Ethics also
apply to specified individuals who include the Group’s senior
management and persons who are privy to inside information of
the Group. The Code of Ethics is on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry with the directors, all directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board assumes overall responsibility to establish and
maintain sound systems in risk management, internal control
and governance to provide reasonable, though not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. The Board confirms that it is the overall responsibility
of the Board to establish and effectively implement the risk
management and internal control systems to ensure the
smooth operation of business, safeguard the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ interests as well as ensure the reliability of
financial statements.

The Group adopts the control framework consistent with the
frameworks recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission in the United States
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
as the standards in establishing risk management and
control systems among our Group companies. The Group’s
risk management and internal control systems include five
key elements, namely the existence of an effective control
environment, risk management, communication and information
system, cost effective control activities and monitoring
mechanism.

The Group requires its business unit to identify and assess
the risks and impact at least once every year. The executive
management team of the business unit is accountable for the
conduct and performance of each operation in the business unit
within the agreed strategies and similarly the management of
each operation is accountable for its conduct and performance.
Policies and procedures are designed for safeguarding corporate
assets, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring
transactions are executed in accordance with management
authorisation. Monthly management reports on the financial
results and key operation indicators are reviewed by the
Executive Committee of the Board. Regular meetings are held
with the executive management team of the business unit to
review the actual performance against budget.

Our Internal Audit Function, reporting to the Audit Committee
and Chairman of the Board respectively, is responsible for
assessing the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, formulating an impartial opinion on the effectiveness
and efficiency of the systems, and reporting its findings to
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee. Follow-up
review will be conducted in due course to ensure that audit
recommendations are being properly implemented. The Internal
Audit conducts independent reviews on the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems on an on-going basis.
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Depending on the nature and risk exposure of the Group’s
business, the scope of work performed by the internal audit
function covers all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

Results of internal audit activities are reported to the Audit
Committee at least once semi-annually and the corrective
actions are taken by the business unit. The Board conducts
regular reviews of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems through the Internal Audit Function and the
Audit Committee.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company shall assess
the circumstances under which inside information may arise
from time to time and disclose inside information as soon
as reasonably practicable in accordance with the Securities
and Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules. The Company
conducts its business affairs with close regard to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission and imposes a strict prohibition on
the unauthorised use of confidential or inside information
by directors, employees and other relevant persons (such as
external service providers and project working team members).

Based on the assessment for the year ended 31 December
2017, the Board and the Audit Committee believe that the risk
management and internal control systems provide reasonable
assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded and there is
no significant area of concerns that may affect shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

No change has been made to the Company’s Articles of
Association during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

In accordance with Section 566 of the Companies Ordinance,
the directors are required to call a general meeting if the
Company has received requests to do so from members of the
Company representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the members having a right to vote at general meeting. Such
requests must (a) state the general nature of the business to
be dealt with at the meeting; and (b) may include the text of a
resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. Such requests (a) may be sent to the
Company in hard copy form (by depositing at the registered
office of the Company for the attention of the Board) or in
electronic form (by email: ir@cre.com.hk); and (b) must be
authenticated by the person or persons making it. In accordance
with Section 567 of the Companies Ordinance, the directors
must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance and such meeting must be held on a date
not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the
meeting.

Besides, Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance provides that
the Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received
requests that it do so from (a) the members of the Company
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
members who have a right to vote on the resolution at the
annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or (b) at
least 50 members who have a right to vote on the resolution at
the annual general meeting to which the requests relate. Such
requests (a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
(by depositing at the registered office of the Company for the
attention of the Board) or in electronic form (by email: ir@cre.
com.hk); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to
be given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons
making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later
than (i) 6 weeks before the annual general meeting to which
the requests relate; or (ii) if later, the time at which notice is
given of that meeting. Section 616 of the Companies Ordinance
provides that the Company that is required under Section 615
of the Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’s own expense to each member
of the Company entitled to receive notice of the annual general
meeting (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting;
and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably practicable
after, it gives notice of the meeting.
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PROCEDURE FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PROPOSE A
PERSON FOR ELECTION AS DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Articles 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person other than a director retiring at a meeting
shall, unless recommended by the directors, be appointed
a director at a general meeting unless at least seven days’
previous notice in writing (to be lodged no earlier than the day
after the despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for
such election and no later than seven days prior to the date
of such meeting) shall have been given to the Company of the
intention of any member qualified to vote at the meeting to
propose any person other than a retiring director for election to
the office of director with notice executed by that person of his
willingness to be appointed.

Not less than three nor more than twenty-eight days before the
date appointed for holding a general meeting notice shall be
given to all who are entitled to receive notice of the meeting of
any person in respect of whom notice has been duly given to the
Company under Article 112.1 of the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The aforesaid procedures is available on the website of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and fair disclosure of information to its
shareholders. Accurate and fair disclosure is necessary for
shareholders to form their own judgement on the operation and
performance of the Group.

The Company has established a Shareholder’s Communication
Policy and the said policy is available on the website of the
Company.

Based on this policy, legitimate questions arising from generally
disclosed information deserves a reasonable reply. The Investor
Relations Department is responsible for managing investor
relations and will respond to such shareholders’ and analysts’
enquiries.

The Company’s website provides shareholders, investors,
existing and prospective partners and counterparties with
information on the Company’s corporate governance practices.
Copies of such information can be obtained from the Company
Secretary upon written request.
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Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Investor Relations
Department of the Company. The contact details are as follows:

Investor Relations Department

China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
39th Floor, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Email: ir@cre.com.hk

Tel No.: 852-2829 9889

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Registrar.

By order of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018

IDONVYNHIAOD ILvHOdHOD
FKEMI

63



64

sHAME
DIRECTORS REPORT

EECo AMABBE_ZT—LFt+ A=
T—HLEFEZREREFEZMSHREZT

BRI R,

FEWS

RERAEFTENEET HERDHBES
e ARBZEBWEI A EER, HE
ZME R 2 S HETE1583MEF157
R, NEARNEZWSHREXEZOMEHT
AW S IRE MR A,

SHER

AEHABE_T—tF+-_A=1+—HLF
B 2a M TRz LA REER N,

Hﬁ /%\

EEoBNTZE—)\FAAA+HB LA
B, mM-ZE—)\FRA=THRINKLQBK
REMOBRRRAEZE " T—EF+ A=
+—BLEFERARKRE, BRARM0.07T
(ZE—RF . 8RARM0.087T), AZkt
B, REBREBAEDANE I, TR
BEAFERS (I "EEHERG IS
BREFE —THAEN) BEH (2F1%H
ERN) ANITERFEARBITAAHAR
M AREMRFRENENITE, ERF
B ERART0.07T, —E—LFEN
KB BB ERERARTO 14T (ZFE—X
F . BRAREM0.087T),

EENEROGIFREFR

KRR F=E—)\FRA+EH (EHN)
EF-E-)\ERA-+TMWAE (BEHM) (F
ERXRBIEER) EEIMERMIFZIZF
Z, NRATENEHEETE—/)\FRA=
THBEHETHRFAFRKS CREAFKX
S HToEREZRERZ2ED, AERD
HREXHEREXZBRE, T —)\F
AATARA(EHD) THFEN=+HEIR
BARNBZERH LIRS EREBRA
A, It NBEBEFREER—/\=S&HF
W+, BEEIEFLE,

The directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders
their report and the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has been principally engaged in the manufacturing,
sales and distribution of beer products. The principal activity of
the Company is investment holding. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are shown on pages 153 to 157. An analysis of the
Group’s performance for the year by regional segments is set out
in Note 6 to the financial statements.

GROUP PROFIT

The consolidated profit and loss account is set out on page 93
and shows the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December
2017.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends a final dividend of RMBO0.07 per share
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: RMBO0.08 per share)
payable on or around 15 June 2018 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
30 May 2018. The final dividend, if approved, is to be payable in
cash in Hong Kong dollars which will be converted from RMB at
the average CNY Central Parity Rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China for the five business days prior to and including
the date of the Annual General Meeting (as defined in the below
section headed “Closure of Register of Members”). Together with
the interim dividend of RMBO0.07 per share, the total dividend
for 2017 will amount to RMBO0.14 per share (2016: RMB0.08 per
share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 17 May 2018 to Thursday, 24 May 2018, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares of the Company will
be registered. In order to determine the identity of members who
are entitled to attend and vote at the annual general meeting
to be held on 24 May 2018 (the “Annual General Meeting”),
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrar, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 16 May 2018 for registration.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the proposed final dividend will be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company after the close of business at 4:30 p.m. on
Wednesday, 30 May 2018, and the register of members of the
Company will be closed on Wednesday, 30 May 2018, during
which no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all share transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Standard
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 29 May 2018 for
registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 is set out in the sections headed “Financial
Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis”, “Corporate Risk Management”, “Corporate Social
Responsibility” and “Corporate Governance Report” from pages
10 to 11, pages 16 to 19, pages 23 to 26, pages 36 to 37, pages 38
to 46 and pages 47 to 63 respectively of this Annual Report.

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations in particular, those having
significant impact on the Group. Any changes in the applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of
relevant employees and business unit from time to time. As far
as the Company is aware, it has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Company.

FIXED ASSETS

Movements in the fixed assets of the Group during the year are
set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED

Details of the shares issued by the Company during the year are
set out in Note 28 to the financial statements.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB2,000,000.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Lang (Chairman)
Mr. Hou Xiaohai (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Po Sing, Tomakin (Chief Financial Officer)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Rong
Mr. Lai Ni Hium, Frank

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Houang Tai Ninh

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric

Dr. Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan
Mr. Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

In accordance with Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Hou Xiaohai, Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Dr. Cheng Mo
Chi, Moses, Mr. Bernard Charnwut Chan shall retire by rotation
at the Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to
which the Company, its subsidiaries, its parent company or the
subsidiaries of its parent company were a party and in which a
director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 30 to 35.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of directors and alternate director who have served
on the board of the subsidiaries of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report is available on the Company’s
website at www.crbeer.com.hk under “Investor Relations -
Corporate Governance”

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every
director shall be indemnified out of the funds of the Company
against all liability incurred by him as such director in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgement is
given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which
may be brought against the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO”), which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, including interests and short positions which
the directors and chief executive of the Company are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, or which are
required to be and are recorded in the register required to be
kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

() FALXBERTEEREMEXEKM (A) INTERESTS IN ISSUED ORDINARY SHARES AND
PR ERNN & UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
HENBEHDE
iz 8 B Aggregate
EEHE 6 e Number of percentage of
Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)
B B aen 400,000 0.01
Chen Lang Long position
=ZE asen 768,000 0.02
Hou Xiaohai Long position
iy e 149,498 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
FRE e 271,817 0.01
Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position
BE - Notes:
1. BANBIROGPOTCEHRERARTF= 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in

E—tF+-A=+—-BERTRHOERK
BB DL,

2. EXARBRBEZRNGEHEEEATRZMEA
ZEMEA.

shares of the Company to the total issued shares of the Company as
at 31 December 2017.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by each director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

44 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



EEZIEHFNRE (»)
(Z) FHBEHAE TS8R REXR

R RE NS
FA, ETUESEWHAEEKZER (EX

N QEZ RSP )M e 21T E B
Z R

(i)

T—RRARKER - £ HEMER
NAE("HLHEH) EXRITER

#HAME
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

(B) INTERESTS IN ISSUED ORDINARY SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at the same date, certain directors had interests in the
issued ordinary shares of associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO):

(i)  Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Land Limited (“CR

iz B ER Land”):
fHERBEFDLL
%4 ¥ B Aggregate

EEng "t RKe Number of percentage of

Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)

BOL raso 10,000 0.01

Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

FRE SR 50,000 0.01

Li Ka Cheung, Eric Long position

A - Notes:

1. ?Eﬁ}ﬁﬁ_fr%ﬁ%&ﬁ@ﬁi(ﬂ%i&ﬂ%ﬁ,@é&.E%Zlij 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in
%%T;gi?g—k*ﬂ:—kiaaﬁﬁ shares of CR Land to the total issued shares of CR Land as at 31
D RIEE L. December 2017.

2. LYFﬁ?%EiéZWE%%BE%%DA?E&%ﬁ 2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director in his
AZHHRA, capacity as beneficial owner.

(i) FT—EBEBEE — £ ERSER (i) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
ARAR CHEERS") BERIT corporation, China Resources Gas Group Limited (“CR
%ﬁﬁﬁz*ﬂé . Gas”):

HERBES
%4 ¥ B Aggregate

EEng "t RKe Number of percentage of

Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest’ (%)

BOL rase 10,000 0.01

Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position

HE - Notes:

1. RS C TS R M SRR SRD B 2R S 4 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions

MESF—E—tLF+ZA=+—HEBEXRTT
& BEHE .

EXFBE NG BaBERARRTE
AZHDFH,

in shares of CR Gas to the total issued shares of CR Gas as at 31
December 2017.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.
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EEZIUEHNE (&) DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

() THEZEAERITEBRRMEXE (B)
R IRAERNNE (8)

(i) F—HMEEAR — 488 ik
BRAF (C4E8A") BT

INTERESTS IN ISSUED ORDINARY SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(iii) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Power Holdings

EBR M Company Limited (“CR Power”):
HENGZF DL

Rt # B Aggregate
EEHF s & Number of percentage of
Name of director Long position/Short position shares interest' (%)
BRA aRen 10,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
BE Notes:
1. FRAFO TP R MY 4R 2 (D 2 2K & 42 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in

BHF-FE—LF+-_A=+—HZEX
TR BB BE D .

2. EXRBBEZAENGEHERALRDIRE
AZEDFA.

(v) F—EMEBEE — £ EKRER
ARAT CAERR) R

shares of CR Power to the total issued shares of CR Power as at 31
December 2017.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.

(iv) Interests in issued ordinary shares of an associated
corporation, China Resources Cement Holdings

B2 A Limited (“CR Cement”):
fHERBEADLL
Aggregate

EspE #e  #Ke R4 E percentage of
Name of director Long position/Short position Number of shares interest’ (%)
By aaen 40,000 0.01
Lai Ni Hium, Frank Long position
BE - Notes:
1. B TP RO LA B 5S4 1. This represents the percentage of the aggregate long positions in

KEFZZE—EF+T_A=+—HEX.TT
&t B E » .

2. EXREBE NG BRERALDITE
AZE0HE,

shares of CR Cement to the total issued shares of CR Cement as at
31 December 2017.

2. All interests disclosed above are being held by the director in his
capacity as beneficial owner.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, other than the interests and short
positions as disclosed above, the following persons have
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as they fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company:

BEEREAEAN
BERENRHKE
Number of
shares in which
76,/ %6 the interested EREFES L
Long position/ party is deemed Percentage of
BENEFEWH Name of interested party Short position to have interests shareholding (%)
FELEERAR China Resources Company e 1,684,077,366 51.91
("B (1) Limited (“CRC”) (Note 1) Long position
LERNBR LA China Resources Co., Limited e 1,684,077,366 51.91
(BRI ") (BHE1T) (“CRCO”) (Note 1) Long position
CRC Bluesky Limited (Fif)T1)  CRC Bluesky Limited (Note 1) e 1,684,077,366 51.91
Long position
8 (5F) BRAR China Resources (Holdings) e 1,684,077,366 51.91
("LBER") (fE1) Company Limited Long position
(“CRH”) (Note 1)
LG (40]) BRAR CRH (CRE) Limited (Note 1) e 1,676,338,664 51.67
(FHE1) Long position
LEAERAR (FE1) China Resources Enterprise, it 1,676,338,664 51.67
Limited (Note 1) Long position
LREE (BF) BRAR CRH (Beer) Limited (Note 1) 7o 1,676,338,664 51.67
(FHE1) Long position
Gaoling Fund, L.P. (fi#}¥2) Gaoling Fund, L.P. (Note 2) iR 167,773,767 5.17
Long position
Hillhouse Capital Hillnouse Capital Management, ~ #f€ 163,771,399 5.05

Management, Ltd. (Ff}¥3)

Ltd. (Note 3)

Long position
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HEMEHRNEHRE &)

MHE

1. HHEH (BB) BRARIRERBMR AR5
B # ¥ A AN A1,676,338,6640% 7,738,702
R, BEE (E) BRARNEBC)L
ERABNERMBAR, MBI ERAF
REHER (L8] BRARNESRHEAFL
HHER (4£0]) BRABIRERERAANN
HEHEANEmE RAHBE AR, £ HBEENCRC
Bluesky Limited#)s2 z5 2 % i B 2 &), MCRC
Bluesky Limited 4R M & RIBH. HLHRHD
RHREELEH (FMIRPELDEQR]) HELKRERE
2 RWE AR, B, % HB%EHA. CRC Bluesky
Limited. 4R &P ELBEMAEHXTAR
711,684,077,366R% A1) 7 M.

2. Gaoling Fund, L.P. A& MKz FH Al

3. Hillhouse Capital Management, Ltd. LA #% &
KB HHEFAEKRG, =$148,667,7678 ) B
Gaoling Fund, L.P.[E)##5%H, 12,863,632/% M
YHG Investment, L.P.[AIERA, 2,240,0008% 17
fHillhouse InRe Fund, L.P.EZ#H A,

R RS

AN R T AN KR4 B S F (AR BT
TS AR R REB I

FEXERS

FW, XEFASKEALTHTETRS : %
EXGBRE LT "RERS" 3 "+
FZXRIERS, WERXHEFBHRHTMSHK
EWIF=ZFZ " EAXRERS . ARFIE
MEEZHET EMHNEVLAZNEEES
K, BRIZFIEST ETMNET4A. 71551
HIRMERRIER S 2 IEBME T T

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS
(Continued)

Notes:

1. CRH (Beer) Limited and Commotra Company Limited directly held
1,676,338,664 shares and 7,738,702 shares in the Company respectively.
CRH (Beer) Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Resources
Enterprise, Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CRH (CRE)
Limited. CRH (CRE) Limited and Commotra Company Limited are beneficially
wholly-owned subsidiaries of CRH. CRH is a beneficially wholly-owned
subsidiary of CRC Bluesky Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by CRCO.
CRCO is an ultimately beneficially wholly-owned subsidiary of CRC (formerly
known as China Resources National Corporation). Thus, CRH, CRC Bluesky
Limited, CRCO and CRC are deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
1,684,077,366 shares in the Company.

2. Gaoling Fund, L.P. is the beneficial owner of the shares.

3. Hillhouse Capital Management, Ltd. held the shares in the capacity of
investment manager. 148,667,767 shares of which were indirectly held by
Gaoling Fund, L.P.. 12,863,632 shares of which were indirectly held by YHG
Investment, L.P. 2,240,000 shares of which were indirectly held by Hillhouse
InRe Fund, L.P.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group conducted certain transactions with
connected persons which constituted “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” under the Listing Rules.
Particulars of these transactions are also set out in Note 33
to the financial statements headed “Material Related Party
Transactions”, with respect to which the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Details of those transactions which are
subject to the reporting requirements under Rule 14A.71 of the
Listing Rules are summarised as follows:

AT () AR2AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

44 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



BERIERG (&)

() ET-EB-AFERRIRPBPUR=

T-EERBAEHNZERMS
P

BIFEARBDF-_E—=F+-"A—-+
BETFI AR LS, EPaENERS%:
EEED, LHEAREEEWNEQA
FreamERKRARNRNRALRERE
HCZFE-=ZFEREZRDI) ;D)
BXRFGEARITROERAR ("4
ERTTY, B h ZHE AR mA
ERRE—RIERITRS (BEEZR
%) RliVExEERERELER
NAE(HEEERT, LRRDZHE
NAE) MAERARRESBRRS K~
(NS(iVAHR - =FHIEA %
W), B TEBRD L EERDN
ERER mEEHERAEmMEE AN
AR AR AN &, w4 ERR (D R4 EE
F A £ A E ST AR B 0OE A
+. ATEERD D BB LBRT
M EEEEM R ABI50%, BAR
B/EMAN, £BRITELEERD
NARRNBHRIEAL, Alt, BIFEL
R BGHITZ R G BFERER S,

ZE-CFEERFDNERY A
ZENFE-A—HEZZT—XRFT+
TAZT—HIENEANEE,

MARNRF_E—RF+_A=+=
BFFEMB NG, —E— =—FERN
TN ETHRZENE T -ZE— X%
+ A+ -—HEEFNERTZHD
NWFURER(ZFE—RNFEERTX
mi"), EXRERMILEZRAKHAE
B, ZF— NFEFRTRDILERY
NEZE—EF-—HF—HBE=_ZE—AN
F+-A=+—RHIEN=ERE,

#HAME
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT

TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2015

On 20 December 20183, the Company issued an
announcement in connection with, among others, (i)
the intra-group lending arrangement with members of
the group of CRCO, CRH and their respective subsidiary
companies (“Framework Loan Agreements 2013”); (ii) the
provision of general banking services including deposits
services by China Resources Bank of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (“CR
Bank”, a subsidiary of CRCO) and (iii) financial services and
products by China Resources SZITIC Trust Co., Ltd. (“CR
Trust”, a subsidiary of CRCO) ((ii) and (iii) collectively the
“Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013”). By virtue of
CRCO being the controlling shareholder of CRH, which in
turn holds a controlling interest in the Company, CRCO and
CRH are connected persons to the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules. In addition, CRCO holds more
than 50% of the registered capital of CR Bank and CR
Trust respectively, CR Bank and CR Trust are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules, and any
transactions under the aforesaid agreements constituted
continuing connected transactions.

Each of the Framework Loan Agreements 2013 was for a
term of three years from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016.

The Framework Loan Agreements 2013 have been renewed
on substantially similar terms as the existing terms under
new framework loan agreements between the same parties
on 22 December 2016 (“Framework Loan Agreements
2016”) as set out in the announcement issued by the
Company on 22 December 2016. Each of the Framework
Loan Agreements 2016 was for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019.

73

IDONVYNHIAOD ILvHOdHOD
FKEMI




74

FHOME
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FERIERG (&)

(F) ETZF-AFERIRBPUKR =

T-AEEKAEDNZSBYS
WXRH (5)

BEIERNE AEHAREMRNH =
E-RNFEERTZIHDUT —FHH
TAERAATENOES 55 LR
(BREEKREFMBENKFE) HED
1,700,000,0007T, ==& HEITER
FTHxFENE—H, mxeE8B8s
PLTHAFEESRERNZE—ITE
NAREREDH, BRAL250—B~4%
NERSFAFITE,

BE-F—t&+-A=+—Ai%
9 e A K B R k) LR SRR e T =
T—tE+-AZ+—RZAH (N
B) ERMT

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT
TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2015
(Continued)

As set out in the aforesaid announcement, the annual
lending cap which can be lent by the Group on any single
day (inclusive of interest received and anticipated to be
received) under both of the Framework Loan Agreements
2016 is HK$1,700,000,000. Such maximum daily amount is
applicable for each day during the relevant year, and such
maximum daily amount is calculated on an individual basis
as outstanding at the end of each day during the relevant
year without aggregating with the daily amount incurred on
the days before.

Information on all the above-mentioned lending made
by the Group during the year ended or balance as at 31
December 2017 (if any) were as follows:

EEON:] F-3-t%
HEERAR Efl® t+ZA=t-AH
Borrower’s Interest £ 1]
REA BRA immediate BRA i BB rate per Balance
Lender Borrower holding company Guarantor  Principal amount Duration annum  at31/12/2017
LESEEE (TE) LRERRABRAE ERCLERAT LEEH  ARM 300000000 07/08/2017- 4.35% -
BB China Resources Full Best CRLand  RMB 05/09/2017
Land Investment Enterprises
Limited Limited

HE-_ZE—+tH&E+-A=+—HItHF
ER, AERAKR T —NFEERE
R EOFE ST NHOART
1,000,0007T (#5824 F 491,000,000
TC)e

- SERMAED BRI G
—E-mE-A-AE-F-n4t
A=+ BLHBIERE,

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of interest received by the Group under Framework
Loan Agreements 2016 was approximately RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,000,000).

Each of the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 was for
a term of two years from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2015.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT

TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2015
(Continued)

The Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2013 have been
renewed on substantially similar terms as the existing
terms under new strategic cooperation agreements
between the same parties dated 9 December 2015
(“Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2015”) as set out in
the announcements issued by the Company on 9 December
2015 and 23 December 2015 respectively. Each of the
Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2015 was for a term of
three years from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018.

CR Bank provides deposit and other commercial banking
services on normal commercial terms which apply to
other customers of CR Bank. Any deposit made with CR
Bank under the Strategic Cooperation Agreements 2015
will bear the same interest and be on the same terms and
conditions as would apply to a similar deposit made by any
other customer of CR Bank which rates are determined
with reference to that published by the People’s Bank of
China or such other preferential rates.

From time to time, the Group may use the commercial
banking services of CR Bank including, but not limited to,
letter of credit, letter of guarantee, granting of loans with
collaterals, bill acceptance and discount services, account
receivable factoring services, Renminbi and foreign
currency settlements, provision of entrustment loans and
security, wealth and cash management services, financial
consulting service and other financial services as agreed
by the parties. These services will be provided on normal
commercial terms which apply to other customers of CR
Bank.
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FERIERG (&)
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(A) FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT
TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2015
(Continued)

CR Trust provides financial services including, but not
limited to, cash management, asset management,
custodian trust loan services, equity cooperation, shares
nominee services, account receivable factoring services,
buying and resale services consulting services and other
trust services to the Group. These services will be provided
on normal commercial terms and will be charged at a
rate no less favourable as would apply to similar services
provided to any other customers of CR Trust.

As set out in the announcement issued by the Company on
9 December 2015, the proposed maximum daily deposit
amount, inclusive of interest payable rounded to the
nearest million, which may be placed by the Group with
CR Bank for the term of the relevant Strategic Cooperation
Agreements 2015 is HK$1,300,000,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the maximum daily
aggregate amount of outstanding deposits placed by the
Group with CR Bank was approximately RMB405,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$476,000,000), and the
aggregate interest income arising from such deposits was
approximately RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,000,000).

As set out in the announcement issued by the Company
on 23 December 2015, the maximum daily amount of
the financial services and products (other than deposit
services) provided by CR Bank together with CR Trust to the
Group is not expected to exceed HK$1,300,000,000 for each
of the three years ended/ending 31 December 2016, 2017
and 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not
use any financial services and products provided by CR
Bank or CR Trust, nor incurred any fees and commissions
therefor.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(A)

(B)

FINANCE RELATED ARRANGEMENTS PURSUANT
TO FRAMEWORK LOAN AGREEMENTS 2016 AND
STRATEGIC COOPERATION AGREEMENTS 2015
(Continued)

The Framework Loan Agreements 2016 and the Strategic
Cooperation Agreements 2015 constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules
and are subject to annual review by the independent non-
executive directors and the auditors of the Company.

BEER SUPPLY FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

On 1 September 2015, China Resources Snow Breweries
Limited (“CRSB”, currently wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, together with its subsidiaries, “CRSB Group”),
entered into a beer supply framework agreement (“Beer
Supply Framework Agreement 2015”) with Gain Land
Limited (“Gain Land”, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of
CRH, together with its subsidiaries, “Gain Land Group”)
with a term commencing from 1 September 2015 to 31
December 2017, pursuant to which the CRSB Group agreed
to supply its beer products to the Gain Land Group from
time to time for the purposes of retail and distribution
of the same by the Gain Land Group. The transactions
shall be conducted on normal commercial terms and the
terms, as a whole, shall be no more favourable than those
terms offered to independent third party retailers and
distributors of the CRSB Group in relation to the supply of
beer products of similar nature and quality. It is estimated
that the maximum amount of purchases to be made by
the Gain Land Group under the Beer Supply Framework
Agreement 2015 will not exceed HK$85,000,000,
HK$345,000,000 and HK$415,000,000 respectively for
the four months ended 31 December 2015 and the two
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017. As Gain Land
is an indirect subsidiary of CRH which is in turn holds
a controlling interest in the Company, Gain Land is an
associate of a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules, and any transactions under the Beer
Supply Framework Agreement 2015 constitute continuing
connected transactions.
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(a) HALIBINEMEMSEBEREF
ERBNREREXIRRANAE
EE 193

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
(B) BEER SUPPLY FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of purchases made by the Gain Land Group
from the CRSB Group under the Beer Supply Framework
Agreement 2015 was approximately RMB89,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$102,000,000).

The aforesaid agreement has been renewed by a new
framework agreement (“Beer Supply Framework Agreement
20177) dated 21 December 2017 for a period commencing
from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020 as announced
by the Company on 21 December 2017 and 23 January 2018
on substantially the same terms as the existing framework
terms. The proposed annual caps for the maximum amount
of purchases to be made by the Gain Land Group under the
Beer Supply Framework Agreement 2017 will not exceed
RMB297,000,000, RMB323,000,000 and RMB348,000,000
respectively for the three years ending 31 December 2020.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the directors
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain work on
continuing connected transactions of the Group in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
provided a letter to the directors of the Company and confirmed
that, for the year ended 31 December 2017:

(a) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to its attention that causes
it to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

(c) nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

(d) with respect to the aggregate amount/daily balance of each
of the relevant continuing connected transactions, nothing
has come to its attention that causes it to believe that
such continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
annual cap/maximum daily balance as set and disclosed
by the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these transactions and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(a) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b) onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2017 are set out on pages 153 to 157.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, the subsidiaries of its parent company, or its parent
company a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of not less
than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the respective percentage of the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the Group’s total value of
purchases and total turnover.

AUDITOR

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May
2017, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers was re-appointed as the
auditor of the Company.

Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
CHEN LANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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To the Members of China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION
WHAT WE HAVE AUDITED

The consolidated financial statements of China Resources Beer
(Holdings) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 93 to 152, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

. the consolidated profit and loss account for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended:;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended;and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

OUR OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

INDEPENDENCE

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

. Impairment assessment of goodwill

. Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses
. Impairment assessment of fixed assets

. Deferred tax on tax losses

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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REFITEM

Key Audit Matter
AELRE T
Impairment assessment of goodwill

B RFAMSREMWEI= (F) "EE221HALT — &1t
BERE" RWEI++E "EE"

Refer to Note 3A “Critical Accounting Estimates
- estimated impairment of goodwill” and Note 17
“Goodwill” to the consolidated financial statements

FZZE—EF+ZA=+—H, H"EATIAFEM
Wi = mbE, HE RS LS~ EARTS,318
BATHEE.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had goodwill of
RMB8,318 million which arose from acquisitions of
businesses engaging in the manufacture, sales and
distribution of beer products in previous years.

HERKEAESIRESXH D ENEXRINS R EE
i, BERSHXAHOART2,281BH7T, FEHLEX LY
ARMB828F AL ME HB#X ) AR M5,2098 77 7T,

ERERHITREE BEEANMEGERESNKE
TR, FEEKEEFHFTHR, EFtIeRETNF
PR BT LE R B FFUNER 2 /e 0T A A S K =
EIRE R R BEBRIRT AN,

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated
to the relevant cash generating units (*“CGU”) in
various regional segments including eastern region
of RMB2,281 million, central region of RMB828
million and southern region of RMB5,209 million.
Management conducted an impairment review by
comparing the recoverable amounts of the goodwill,
estimated based on value in use calculation, with
their carrying amounts. The key assumptions and
judgements adopted by management in the relevant
discounted cash flow forecasts included discount
rates and expected revenue growth rates beyond the
five-year projection period.

T <7 4% 5O 4R
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B = I AL E X B T BT
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FE Ak 3B X A A A, B AT E IR R X R E T
EMEHOFTLIASRETN AT TATEF:
In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures on the discounted cash flow
forecasts prepared by management that supported
the impairment assessment:

BIERNSKRHRENERZHENMEHITH

B, HHASREMNTHRREABERSS
3
. assessed the reasonableness of key input data

in the cash flow forecasts by comparing them
with the historical actual information and
management’s approved budget;

« BEFIONEZ BB AEKESEXNT
HINER, ELENT AR, FITEOR
compared the expected revenue growth rates
beyond the five-year projection period to
relevant market expectations such as industry
information;

- REBANNLSHEHFEMTIZOER HE5HA
BB RAIFETHER, RKNADELINSR L
BRIMHTLER

. tested the discount rates assigned to the
CGUs with reference to our understanding of
the business, compared to those used by other
similar companies, and our broader market
considerations;

. P& AT [El & 8 PR A B AN E (G B Az sk
PR AT E R ERNE . &
evaluated the methodologies adopted and
checked the mathematical accuracy of the
value in use calculation used to estimate the
recoverable amounts; and
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REFITEM (&)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

AERNRETRE (%)

Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)

BFTF-2—+t&+-A=+T—HBEXRIANAEKE
B, PARFE T M E A AT 4 B a8 Ko 3K i
BAVAR X R — PR BT I F L,

Because of the significance of the carrying amounts
of goodwill as at 31 December 2017, together with
the use of significant judgements in estimating the
recoverability of such carrying amounts, we had
identified this matter as a key audit matter.

4 R 3 32 AR IA
Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses

B2RSEMESHRENE= (2) "EZL1HEIT — iR
RAERHST A KM= += "R REM NI
Refer to Note 3B “Critical Accounting Estimates -
accruals on promotion and marketing expenses”
and Note 23 “Trade and Other Payables” to the
consolidated financial statements

BHE-_T—tF+-_A=+—HILFE HZTEHBKX
MR RS A, SRl TEEeMaRPEIANEE
B (LU EANELFRLD) SHHEERDHEHR. A
i, FZE—tF+ZA=1+—HtBRIAMMEXME
.

The Group had significant amounts of promotion
and marketing expenses and recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account as sales
rebates (accounted for as a reduction of revenue) or
selling and distribution expenses for the year ended
31 December 2017. Meanwhile, the related accruals
were also significant as at 31 December 2017.

BN = I AL E R BT ITED (£)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

. BB LT (4 5 K 5 A TR AR T 8RR M &
T, AT BBRIEPHEET N EIT ] E S
B,

. performed sensitivity analysis on the key input
data and assumptions to the impairment
assessment, to understand the impact of
reasonable alternative assumptions that
would have on the estimated recoverable
amounts.

FELRIR XA EIRRRT, FATHIT T A TIEF -
In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures:

- BRMTEERRRD EITARIARE RS
MR T A IE R RRAZ, FFXRBIE
FEHHITNR
understood, evaluated and selectively
tested the key controls associated with
management’s process of identification,
estimation and recognition of promotion and
marketing expenses and accruals;

o ERBARKRIHESN -8, AN EFENR
RFEREAERET T IHE, BEFOIIRER

RMSARFERRERANSIAETHR, UHE
ERFEMITEIREFREFERE

. as part of our risk assessment, evaluated
the outcome of the prior year accruals by
comparing the historical accruals to the
actual amounts utilised in the current year to
ascertain if management bias existed in the
estimation process;
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REBEITEI (£)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

B = I AL E R R T T (£2)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

RERET AN (%)

Recognition of promotion and marketing expenses (Continued)

EEERESHERZH T EN MM XD HEE LK
R REREREEINER, HIHRER
. ORM, THE, HERERERET BERNTR S,
Management records accruals for promotion and
marketing expenses according to the relevant
terms in the agreements with a large number
of distributors in various regions in Mainland
China, taking into consideration of the nature of
the promotion activities such as volume rebates,
allowances, discounts, etc.

WIREHBED GARKBEEEMRR, MNHERKARZEN R
SR D, T —ARTTHIE BB A B AR S AR U4 5>
KNHERDHETERPEREET A,

If the promotion activities are related to future sales
volume, the related costs are treated as a reduction
of revenue. The costs related to general marketing
activities are classified as promotion and marketing
expenses in selling and distribution expenses.

HE It E R TR 78 B LA R R B L EUR D SR E
RoHERNDRFENASHE. HEMEIABXH
BER2URN, X2FREBANEREHITAMAM,
Determining and calculating the accruals as at
period ends and the respective classification
as either a reduction of revenue or selling and
distribution expenses requires application
of various accounting principles relating to
classification, measurement and recognition, which
involved significant management estimates and
judgements.

HT RN HBERENRS, MEBE-T—tF+H
=+ —HIEFEORFMRRHELE A, A REIA
M REFHE SIS R ERHM, FAVANEE—
MREREITEIL,

Because of the large number of distributors involved
and the significance of the accruals for promotion
and marketing expenses for the year ended 31
December 2017, together with the significant
judgements involved in determining the amounts to
be recognised and classified, we had identified this
matter as a key audit matter.

RIEEEZREINMALRE BESZE55HE
WaREZER REGIHNERMMIT LN S
;M BIERELITNERMOEERENARE
FKMNAEERHABRMIZER . &

based on input data prepared by management
that included references to the underlying
contracts with distributors, nature of
promotion activities provided and amounts
of expected expenses to be incurred, tested
the key accruals made by management by
comparing them with signed contracts with
distributors and issued invoices; and

BESHHEBASITNARMALNAEHITHR
SN AR E 22 AN O 2K,

tested the recognition and classification of
expenses during the year by comparing them
with signed contracts with distributors and
issued invoices.
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REFITEM (&) BNH T I AL EX BT ITSEM (%)

Key Audit Matter (Continued) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

& E & = # R E T
Impairment assessment of fixed assets

B RFAMSRERMWEI= (R) "BEE21HAELT — At ELBEXNEREE, AT TATER
EER~RME" RHF+R EER~ In addressing this matter, we had performed the
Refer to Note 3C “Critical Accounting Estimates — following procedures:

estimated impairment of fixed assets” and Note

16 “Fixed Assets” to the consolidated financial ML E R E NI &£ B B EE R 17

statements TERE D R AT I

. tested management’s assessment as to
FZE—LFF+ZA=+—H, REHAMEER"K which groups of fixed assets have indicators
HESFNART20,4498 7T, of impairment, together with management’s
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had fixed assets grouping of such assets in the relevant CGUs;
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB20,449
million. o NTABELRNI SR E L EE R,

MHBERZREEXTLULEASRETON, B

MRAER-HEBEMNEFERELIR, BERESE -
WEERAANS R~ E BT RE S TRFTRET . for those CGUs that included fixed assets with
. BER~AKE ST RAFERANENL LNERL impairment indicators, tested the relevant
ERANKSE, ERNNISRETUN S ATRA T discounted cash flow forecasts prepared by
LR AIE KR E RN EEE R BERIZA A, management, including:
If impairment indicators exist on the cash
generating units (“CGUs”) to which the assets . G A B SERR IR A E IR R HEE BT E 1T
belong, management conducted an impairment L, 1THMEIM S RETN A B g AE
review by estimating the recoverable amounts of LA -
the relevant CGUs, using the higher of value in use . assessed the reasonableness of key
calculation and fair value less costs of disposal. input data in the cash flow forecasts by
The key assumptions and judgements adopted by comparing them with historical actual
management in the relevant discounted cash flow information and management’s approved
forecasts included discount rates and revenue budget;

growth rates, etc.
. BB A K ESHEXATATN, i
TR, FHITHR
. compared the expected revenue growth
rates to relevant market expectations
such as industry information;
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REBEITEI (£)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

B = I AL E R R T T (£2)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

B R R E TG (5)

Impairment assessment of fixed assets (Continued)

RIB T 45 NARML16B H L EHRICTE N RIE
A, MR AR R B E R = B9 MK E(E = AT M B 2 3
Based on the result of assessment, an impairment
charge of RMB415 million was recorded to reduce
the carrying amounts of certain fixed assets to their
recoverable amounts.

HTFTF-E—tF+ZA=+—RARANEE R~k
HE(XTBEEARELRNETER™), AREM
THEXR A AT S S REBAFIM, HATARNIX
RN EITED,

Because of the significance of the carrying amounts
of fixed assets as at 31 December 2017 (including
those with impairment indicators), together with
the use of significant judgements in estimating the
recoverable amounts of the relevant assets, we had
identified this matter as a key audit matter.

RIFBATT W SRR, BEARASRS
ARSI RIMTIZNER, FE5EM
BN ARFITHR, RMRAFTLEEX

tested the discount rates with reference
to our understanding of the business

including the future business plans of

the relevant CGUs, comparisons to other

similar companies and broader market
considerations;

eI E S F AR ANERANERER
SRR BEITEE AR . &
evaluated the methodologies adopted
and checked the mathematical accuracy
of the value in use calculation used to
estimate the recoverable amounts; and

TR E Ak 9 < B 4 A SR AR IR 1T BUR
Mo, RTEREBIRPHEBZAXNEITA]
W El & 2R EY R

performed sensitivity analysis on the
key input data and assumptions to the
impairment assessment, to understand

the impact of reasonable alternative

assumptions that would have on the
estimated recoverable amounts.
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REBHEITEI (£)
Key Audit Matter (Continued)

BRHSTRBEHMEHR

Deferred tax on tax losses

B RFAMSREOME= (T) "EE21HHIT — 3
JEFTAS TR F=MBIA " RMDE = 4-7% "B R

Refer to Note 3D “Critical Accounting Estimates
- recognition of deferred tax assets” and Note 26
“Deferred Taxation” to the consolidated financial
statements.

FZZ2—tEF+A=+—0, BEHEHBWSSHM
FEMBEREFAARMI01B AT, RN, 59
ERHHE A BB XN ARBINBER IR =55 M
NARM2,8598 777,

At 31 December 2017, the Group had deferred tax
assets attributable to tax losses of RMB101 million.
Meanwhile, there were tax losses relating to certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China of RMB2,859 million
that were not recognised as deferred tax assets as
at the same date.

TR NS ER I A 7= 55 2 BUR T & 122 1Tl 48 XM
BT TARKREFRNZE TR E) R 40 HE LA B
XRS5 R,

The recognition of tax losses as deferred tax
assets depends on management’s assessment as
to whether the relevant subsidiaries would have
adequate future taxable profits to utilise these tax
losses within a period of five years from the year of
occurrence.

WEARRNPHAEER C®, =FERBEAEN LD
251 K1 3k B R FHOM X 7 Sk B2 40 8 R DE 89 2 31 K B AL A 1T
iy, ILEITE S REE RO E RN 1T R,

Determining the adequacy of future taxable profits
requires assessment of projection of both the
amounts and timing of future taxable profits which
are based on approved business plans or profit
forecasts, and such assessments involve significant
management estimates and judgements.

BN = I AL E R BT ITED (£)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(Continued)

XA ERRRS, BAVRITT AR
In addressing this matter, we had performed the
following procedures:

o MWEEENT -E-—tEF+t -A=1—"B&ERK
METiR, BREBAXMERAHRS T IR HHN
B SRS UTER IS ERERE 5 ;
tested and agreed the selected tax losses at
31 December 2017, including the respective
expiry periods, to the tax computations and tax
correspondences for the relevant subsidiaries;

. KEREAENTME, JERSEERBEMEX T
WIZTON, LTl #i, FHITHR, WHAEX
Bt 22 B A T & A FIUN o &Y o 2 il A BdE I R 1R
(BIERRNPFF AR E) BE561E

. assessed the reasonableness of key input data
and underlying assumptions adopted in the
profit forecasts (including the timing of future
taxable profits) for the relevant subsidiaries by
comparing them with management’s approved
budget, historical actual information and
relevant market expectations such as industry
information;

- EEEEBRXNENIUNFKBRITEAERL
N
checked the mathematical accuracy of
the forecasts profit or loss prepared by
management; and

. KERBRENKE RS IETRH#ATHR, RN
EIRE XS R B &R FION X Rz 40 3% A E B 1+ B
REE
tested management’s reconciliation of the
above profit forecasts to taxable profit
calculations by comparing with management’s
book-to-tax reconciliation schedules.
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KREEITED (£) B = I AL E R R T T (£2)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(Continued)

Key Audit Matter (Continued)

BEXRBSTMBETER (&)

Deferred tax on tax losses (Continued)

HTFT-E—tF+TA=1T—HHARIAHRSSHR, A
NAEFIN AN S ERBUPTS ROERHM, A
ANHIXR— PR B E TR,

Because of the significance of the amounts of tax
losses as at 31 December 2017, together with the
significant judgements involved in determining the
amounts of respective recognised and unrecognised
deferred tax, we had identified this matter as a key

audit matter.

Hft 55

RRAESFMNEMES AT, HBES
EBERAOMAERER, BETEEEAN
REBAVOZERIDIR S

&)& iy
=

BAINGZEMSHENERF TREZHAME
B, BN TIZEEMEBRAREMPR
E’V_—éﬁéulm

SZERBANMNZEMFSIHREMFTIT, HAIR
TRAREMES, FldREH, ZEEM
EERESHFAMSHERIABANETITIE
AT T REBRFEERRARRE UFFHE
EXRBIRFE B

ETHRMNEHFITH IR, MRBAVANEM
EEFHEEXRERER BINTERELE
K, HXTE, BIVRBEEARSE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Liao Weining.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
(If there is any inconsistency between the English and Chinese

version of this independent auditor’s report, the English version
shall prevail)
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HEZT—

AR
CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

& +=HA=+—H1LFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2017

—E—+tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
B5E ARTEAT ARMBATT
Notes RMB million RMB million
Bl E Turnover 6 29,732 28,694
FHERA Cost of sales (19,703) (19,021)
E A Gross profit 10,029 9,673
E A Other income 7 903 723
HENDHERH Selling and distribution expenses (5,012) (5,033)
— R AT FE A General and administrative expenses (3,976) (3,535)
W 25 A 7K Finance costs 8 (128) (89)
B B Bl v A Profit before taxation 1,816 1,739
A1 Taxation 13 (630) (320)
REEEF Profit for the year 9 1,186 1,419
2T Attributable to:

RAERRR Shareholders of the Company 1,175 629
FERHIR RN Non-controlling interests 1 790
1,186 1,419

BRER Earnings per share 15
YN Basic RMBO0.36 RMB 0.22
hSE Diluted RMBO0.36 RMB 0.22
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e AT R R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HEZZ—tHF+=-A=+—HBILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2017

—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
S R F Profit for the year 1,186 1,419
Hib2mWsE (FH) : Other comprehensive income/(expenses):
BEANESLERE Items that may be reclassified
2ZUHE : subsequently to profit or loss:
BIML S 2L ERES Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations 135 (114)
RKEEHMLEKE Other comprehensive income/(expenses)

(%A (RBF) for the year, net of tax 135 (114)
AFEELENE LM Total comprehensive income for the year 1,321 1,305
SET : Attributable to:

RAFRRR Shareholders of the Company 1,309 531

R4 B AR R AN Non-controlling interests 12 774

1,321 1,305

AR () AMRAE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

44 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



g5 a B D fi ok
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

F-Z—t&F+=-A=+—H At31 December 2017

—E—+tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
B5E ARTEAT ARMBATT
Notes RMB million RMB million
R E= Non-current assets
& E 7= Fixed assets
—EBEEEEHE WL — Interests in leasehold land
AL TN S held for own use under
operating leases 16 3,253 3,324
— H Al - Other property, plant and
GE=EpSakE=) equipment 16 17,196 17,576
HE Goodwill 17 8,318 8,422
HAth T & = Other intangible assets 18 147 171
Al ERE Available for sale investments 19 9 9
T SR Prepayments 20 81 89
168 AT 10T 7 Deferred taxation assets 26 2,261 2,011
31,265 31,602
RBRFE Current assets
Fi Stocks 21 5,826 6,110
RS K E b N U FR I Trade and other receivables 22 1,006 1,253
AR B 7 I Taxation recoverable 114 75
DR ITEF Pledged bank deposits 79 103
NeRIEeENY Cash and cash equivalents 2,361 3,487
9,386 11,028
Fsh AR Current liabilities
R 5 K oA R A FRIR Trade and other payables 23 (16,605) (16,4711)
SR EIE 2 i /NN E N Loans from a holding company 24 = (2,722)
SEENAE N Short term loans 25A (2,383) (1,592)
INERESA Taxation payable (207) (80)
(19,195) (20,805)
e fReE Net current liabilities (9,809) (9,777)
BESRAR Ak Total assets less current liabilities 21,456 21,825
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GARE T NME

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

—ZE—tF ZERRF
2017 2016
B E ARTEAT ARTEATT
Notes RMB million RMB million

ER B AR Non-current liabilities
KHIBT K Long term loans 258 (1,087) (2,953)
13 JEFR I A 157 Deferred taxation liabilities 26 (255) (271)
HtIEm N 5 Other non-current liabilities 27 (1,629) (934)
(2,971) (4,158)
18,485 17,667

IR 2 R fek &% Capital and reserves

A7 Share capital 28 14,090 14,090
= Reserves 4,331 3,511

ERTRRN SN & Equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company 18,421 17,601
FRERARA NG Non-controlling interests 64 66
B Total equity 18,485 17,667

F<Bf CHEN LANG
FZEDirector

=7 LAI PO SING, TOMAKIN
ZEFDirector

AR () AMRAE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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SaleRER
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HE-T—tF+=-A=+—HBIEFE Forthe year ended 31 December 2017

—E2—+tF —ERF
2017 2016
L1p=S ARTEAR ARTEATT
Notes RMB million RMB million
KLEZHZASRE Cash flows from operating activities
KXEFEZA® Cash generated from operations 29A 5,053 5,089
B E RN ETER Chinese Mainland income tax paid (812) (783)
B ERM SR Chinese Mainland income tax
refunded 14 14
ZEEHZMWERNEE Net cash from operating activities 4,255 4,320
BRRAFHZAERE Cash flows from investing activities
HERBTASTHBHI  Proceeds from disposal of fixed
assets 200 280
EHFILE Interest received 95 71
BTN 4N B Receipt of government grants 433 462
W ElfEF— B A F] Repayment of loan to a fellow
=il Sy NS ISR subsidiary 300 -
(= il SIS/ 1P Loan to a fellow subsidiary
B /B 22 R A TR (300) -
PN E Purchase of fixed assets (1,915) (1,863)
S ARIFEUWHIE  Settlement of consideration payable
NSIESIVE PSR for acquisition of subsidiaries in
prior year - (536)
DRIARITEF2ES  Changes in pledged bank deposits 24 22
RAFHEAZARME  Net cash used in investing activities (1,163) (1,564)
REEHZANERE Cash flows from financing activities
BERRE Dividends paid (487) -
SN EEANGIE = Ak Dividends paid to non-controlling
R Z AR shareholders of subsidiaries (16) (15)
EFIE Interest paid (117) (106)
RATE BTSRRI Net proceeds from issue of ordinary
AN shares - 8,149
BRITREMMETIFFS  Proceeds from bank and other
I borrowings 29B 3,059 2,284
EMARIT R E MBS T Repayment of bank and other
borrowings 29B (3,894) (3,594)
18 B 2 B AN 25, Purchase of additional interests in
BIEZ G (KIE) subsidiaries, including transaction
cost (Note) - (11,092)
kB —EER A A Loans from a holding company
B BT - 3,030
[k — [EHEAR A 7 Repayment of loan from a holding
B DT company 29B (2,715) (341)
2k — B & QA& H Repayment of loan from a fellow
LN NGNS subsidiary - (500)
MEENEAZFIE  Net cash used in financing activities (4,170) (2,185)
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SoueRER

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

—ZE—tF ZERRF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
BUERIESEE Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
CRi>) /& cash equivalents (1,078) 571
LERFEZ W Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (48) 114
F-A—HBZAEk Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
NeE 3,487 2,802
F+-—A=+—82 Cash and cash equivalents at
NekIlesE 31 December 2,361 3,487
NERNSEELER Analysis of the balances of cash
2o and cash equivalents
Me RBEITERE Cash and bank balances 2,361 3,487

MHE: 20165 R A RN AT EeFRWELESE
BREE 49% AR (MEE=+ ).

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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purchase of additional 49% equity interest in CRSB (Note 32).



SABRENGZE R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE_ZT—tF+ZA=1T—HILFE Fortheyear ended 31 December 2017

sl
RERE
Non- ERg
RARRFRERE controlling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
WAt
Rmitl
Fikit
Shares held
fi HERE SLH#EE  forrestricted RERF
Share Valuation Exchange incentive Retained 4t
capital reserve reserve award scheme profits Total
ARREAR ARPEAR ARMEAR ARMEAR ARMEAR ARFEAR ARDPEAR ARDEAR
RMB million  RMBmillion RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion RMBmillion RMBmillion  RMB million  RMB million
T-®-t5-A-A At 1 January 2017 14,090 3 (2,451) (19) 5,978 17,601 66 17,667
BMERER Fxchange differences
on translating foreign
operations = = 134 = = 134 1 135
RERGRF Profit for the year - - - - 1,175 1,175 1 1,186
REELEMRFE LA Total comprehensive
income for the year = = 134 = 1,175 1,309 12 1,321
SBEARS: Transactions with owners:
El—EEARNE Purchase of additional interest
ina subsidiary - - - - (2) (2) 2 -
& Dividends = = = = (487) (487) (16) (503)
SREARG R Total transactions with owners - - - - (489) (489) (14) (503)
FZZ-tETZA=1—H At31 December 2017 14,090 3 (2,317) (19) 6,664 18,421 64 18,485
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50 e R AN a7 2 &

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ea]
BEma
Non- feitc
RATBRER S controlling Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Company interests equity
Rt
Ednip]
Frks iR
Shares held
e fhiEREE LHfES  forrestricted RER
Share Valuation Exchange incentive Retained A3t
capital reserve reserve award scheme profits Total

ARTBAT ARMBEAT ARTEAT ARMEAT ARMEAR ARMEAR ARMEAT ARMEAR
RMB million  RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million ~ RMBmillion ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million

F-2—7F-f-H At 1 January 2016 5,941 3 (2,353) (19) 0,484 10,056 9,264 19,320
%z RER Fxchange differences on

translating foreign operations - - (98) - - (98) (16) (114)
REFRF Profit for the year - - - - 629 629 790 1419
FEELERREH Total comprehensive income

for the year - - (98) - 629 531 774 1,305
SREARS: Transactions with owners;
EWHE AR (FT) Purchase of additional interest

in subsidiaries (Note) - - - - (1,135) (1,135) (9,957) (11,092)
) Dividends - - - - - - (15) (15)
SRR T2 7R Issue of new shares under

(M xRH2ER) rights issue (net of share

issue expenses) 8,149 - - - - 8,149 - 8,149
SHEARSEH Total transactions with owners 8,149 - - - (1,135) 7,014 (9,972) (2,958)
FZE-xE+ZA=+—HB At31 December 2016 14,090 3 (2,451) (19) 5978 17,601 66 17,667

BE . MMEARNGEZRIEEWALESEEAR  Note: Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries mainly includes the purchase
49% RN (MHE=+=), of additional 49% equity interest in CRSB (Note 32).

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Company is a public company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liabilities and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The directors regard the ultimate holding
company to be China Resources Company Limited (“CRC”),
a company established in the Chinese Mainland. The
address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is 39/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
sales and distribution of beer products. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are shown on pages 153 to 157.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
Save as specified in the principal accounting policies as
set out in Note 2, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).
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GENERAL (Continued)

D (i) ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations on Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) that are effective or
available for early adoption for the financial year beginning
1 January 2017. In the current year, the Group has adopted
the following amendments.

HKAS 7 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative

HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income Taxes

HKFRS 12 (Amendment) Disclosure of interests
in other entities

The adoption of the amendments has had no material
effect on the results or financial positions of the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustments are required.

TE (M%) AR2AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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1. GENERAL (Continued)

D(ii) ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND
INTERPRETATIONS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised standards, amendments and interpretations that

have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 28 (Amendment) Long-term Interests in
an Associate or Joint

Venture?

HKAS 40 (Amendment) Transfers of investment
property’

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Classification and
measurement of
share-based payment
transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9
“Financial instruments”
with HKFRS 4
“Insurance contracts” '

HKFRSs (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 4 (Amendment)

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 9 (Amendment)

Financial Instruments’
Repayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’
Clarifications to HKFRS 15"

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 15 (Amendment)

HKFRS 16 Leases? =
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?® % _
HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency igg
Transactions and > ?E
Advance Consideration’ %
HK(IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income =

Tax Treatments?
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1.
D(ii) ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND

GENERAL (Continued)

INTERPRETATIONS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
2. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
3. Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of
the impact of these new standards, amendments and
interpretations in the period of initial application. So
far the Group has identified some aspects of the new
standards which may have an impact on the Group. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed below.

HKFRS 9 “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” (EFFECTIVE FOR
ANNUAL PERIOD BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY
2018)

The Group does not expect the new guidance to have a
significant impact on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets because a fair value through other
comprehensive income election is available for the equity
instruments which are currently classified as available for
sale investments.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect
the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities.

The Group has also assessed on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its financial assets
carried at amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.
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GENERAL (Continued)

D(ii) ACCOUNTING STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND

INTERPRETATIONS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(Continued)

The new hedge accounting rules will align the accounting
for hedging instruments more closely with the Group’s risk
management practices. However, at this stage the Group
does not expect to adopt any hedge accounting in near
periods and therefore, it may not have any impact on the
Group upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are
expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s
disclosures about its financial instruments particularly in
the year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 15 “REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS” (EFFECTIVE FOR ANNUAL PERIOD
BEGINNING ON OR AFTER 1 JANUARY 2018)

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition
of revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts. The new standard is based on the
principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good
or service transfers to a customer. The standard permits
either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption.

The Group has assessed the effects of the applying the new
standard on the consolidated financial statements and has
not identified any material impact to the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include
the financial statements of the Company and of all its
direct and indirect subsidiaries. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are included from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate. All material intra-group
transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Prior to 1 January 2010, increases in interests in existing
subsidiaries were treated in the same manner as the
acquisition of subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain
purchase gain being recognised where appropriate. For
decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless of
whether the disposals would result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries, the difference between the
consideration received and the carrying amount of the
share of net assets disposed of was recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account.

From 1 January 2010 onward, changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in existing subsidiaries that do not
involve a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, with no impact on goodwill or profit or
loss. When control of subsidiary is lost as a result of
a transaction, event or other circumstance, the Group
derecognises all assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests at their carrying amount. Any retained interest
in the former subsidiary is recognised at its fair value at
the date the control is lost, with the gain or loss arising
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the group has control. The group controls
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases. In
the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries
are carried at cost less any impairment loss. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary prior to
1 January 2010 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary on or after
1 January 2010 represents the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the previously held equity interest in the acquiree over
the net fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. Goodwill is tested for impairment
at the reporting date and whenever there is an indication
that the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates
may be impaired. Such goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. An impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account and is not reversed in a subsequent period.
On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
GOODWILL (Continued)

Prior to 1 January 2010, a discount on acquisition
arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary represents the
excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition over
the cost of acquisition. Gain on bargain purchase arising
on an acquisition of a subsidiary on or after 1 January
2010 represents the excess of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
over the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the previously held equity interest in
the acquiree. Discount on acquisition or gain on bargain
purchase arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is
recognised immediately in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Group’s financial assets are classified as “financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss”, “loans and
receivables” and “available for sale investments” dependent
on the purpose for which the assets are acquired. Financial
liabilities are classified as “financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss” and “financial liabilities other
than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(other financial liabilities)” Details of classifications and
measurements are as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and have two sub-
categories: financial assets held for trading and those
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised directly in the profit and loss account
in the period in which they arise.
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(B)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market which are initially measured at fair
value. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the debtors, the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

Available for sale investments are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of
the other categories.

Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be measured reliably are stated at cost less
impairment losses. Apart from this, available for sale
investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs. At each balance sheet date the fair
value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in the profit and
loss account.

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss
account when there is objective evidence that the equity
investment is impaired.

Objective evidence of impairment includes significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty and
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with the operations of the
investment.

For those investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the equity investment and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment losses will not reverse in subsequent
periods. For those investments carried at fair value, any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such equity
investments is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in valuation reserve.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in the profit and
loss account in the period in which they arise.

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

DERECOGNITION

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
the profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit and loss
account.
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(A)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or administrative purposes, are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes all construction expenditure, professional
fees, borrowing costs capitalised and other relevant
expenses directly attributable to such projects.

No provision for depreciation is made on construction
in progress until such time when construction work is
complete and the costs of construction are transferred to
the appropriate category of fixed assets when available for
use.

OTHER PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixed assets other than construction in progress are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation of other fixed assets is provided to write off
the cost of the assets over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account their estimated residual values,
using the straight line method. The residual values and
useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

- Interests in leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 20 to 40 years

- Leasehold improvements 3 to 10 years or over the

unexpired term of lease,
whichever is shorter

B Plant and machinery 5to 25 years

- Furniture and equipment

- Motor vehicles

3to 10 years
5to 6 years
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(ii)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

LEASED ASSETS

Assets acquired under finance leases

Assets acquired pursuant to finance leases that transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases and are accounted for as if purchased whereby
an amount equivalent to cost is recorded as fixed assets
and as obligations under finance leases. Depreciation
is provided in accordance with the Group’s depreciation
policy. Payments to the lessor are treated as consisting
of capital and interest elements. The interest element is
charged to the profit and loss account.

Operating lease charges

All leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

Rental income or expense arising from operating leases
(net of any benefits received and receivable as an incentive
to enter into an operating lease) is recognised in the profit
and loss account on a straight line basis over the periods
of the respective leases except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s
benefit.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FIXED ASSETS (Continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to assess whether
there is any indication that fixed asset are impaired. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated and where relevant, an impairment
loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Such impairment losses are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount. Such reversal of
impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit and loss account in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item
of fixed asset is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the profit and loss account.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

On initial recognition, other intangible assets acquired
separately and from business combinations are recognised
at cost and at fair value respectively. After initial
recognition, other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are stated at cost and are amortised on
the straight line method over their useful lives with
amortisation commences when the asset is available for
use. The estimated useful lives of other intangible assets
with finite useful lives are as follows:
Brand names 10 to 20 years
These intangible assets are assessed for impairment
at each balance sheet date by comparing their carrying
amounts with their recoverable amounts. Where indication
of impairment exists, an impairment loss is charged
to the profit and loss account to reduce the assets
to its recoverable amount. Where an impairment loss
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount. Such reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is provided in full on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements, with limited exceptions. Deferred taxation
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred taxation is
calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
STOCKS

Stocks which comprise raw materials, consumables and
packing materials, work-in-progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost (Include those costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of finished goods. Purchase
rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase)
and net realisable value or amortised into expense based
upon periods of usage.

Cost of work-in-progress and finished goods comprise
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads.

Cost is determined on the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is determined as the estimated net
selling price less all further costs of production and the
related costs of marketing, selling and distribution.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the profit and loss account over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset.

RECOGNITION OF REVENUE

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course of
business and net of discounts.

Sales are recognised upon delivery of goods and provision
of services; and interest income is recognised in the profit
and loss account as it accrues.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

1 16 Al (k) AR 25 CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is amortised to the consolidated profit and
loss account over the guarantee period.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are accounted for on the accrual basis
and charged to the profit and loss account in the year
incurred, except for costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of that assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

Fees paid for the arrangement of syndicated loan facilities
and debt securities are deferred, and are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
each individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign
currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
FOREIGN EXCHANGE (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in the profit and loss account
in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation, in
which case, such exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income in the consolidated
financial statements. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the Group’s exchange
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account in the period which
the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in the translation
reserve.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2C. The Group conducted an impairment
review by comparing the recoverable amounts of the
goodwill, estimated based on value in use calculation,
with their carrying amounts. The key assumptions and
judgements adopted by management in the relevant
discounted cash flow forecasts included discount rates
and expected revenue growth rates beyond the five-year
projection period. Details of the key assumptions are
disclosed in Note 17.

ACCRUALS ON PROMOTION AND MARKETING
EXPENSES

Management records accruals for promotion and
marketing expenses according to the relevant terms in the
agreements with a large number of distributors in various
regions in Mainland China. If the promotion activities
are related to future sales volume, the related costs are
treated as a reduction of revenue. The costs related to
general marketing activities are classified as promotion
and marketing expenses in selling and distribution
expenses. Determining and calculating the accruals as at
period ends and the respective classification as either a
reduction of revenue or selling and distribution expenses
requires application of various accounting principles
relating to classification, measurement and recognition,
which involved significant management estimates and
judgements. The estimation basis is reviewed on an on
going basis and revised where appropriate.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

According to the accounting policies stated in Note 2E(D),
if impairment indicators exist on the cash generating
units (“CGUs”) to which the assets belong, management
conducted an impairment review by estimating the
recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs, using the
higher of value in use calculation and fair value less
costs of disposal. The key assumptions and judgements
adopted by management in the relevant discounted cash
flow forecasts included discount rates and revenue growth
rates, etc.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(Continued)

RECOGNITION OF DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The recognition of tax losses as deferred tax assets
depends on management’s assessment as to whether
the relevant subsidiaries would have adequate future
taxable profits to utilise these tax losses within a period
of five years from the year of occurrence. Determining the
adequacy of future taxable profits requires assessment of
projection of both the amounts and timing of future taxable
profits which are based on approved business plans or
profit forecasts, and such assessments involve significant
management estimates and judgements. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

CREDIT RISK

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables and bank balances.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk
to trade and other receivables as its customer bases are
widely spread across diverse geographical locations. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that open account
customers are financially viable and with an appropriate
credit history. To minimise its credit risk exposure, credit
evaluations are performed for the determination and
approval of credit limits granted and other monitoring
procedures are implemented to ensure that follow-up
actions are taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
regular reviews on aging and recoverability are performed
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has procedures and
policies in place to ensure they are made to counterparties
with good credit rating.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient
cash and the availability of adequate committed credit
facilities to fund capital, prospective investment
opportunities, debt servicing obligations and dividend
payments. Management also closely monitors the Group’s
rolling forecast and actual cash flows and maturity profiles
of financial liabilities.

The following table details the outstanding contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
borrowings, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using

BITHAER), ARAKNEFATREEEK contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
=) the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay.
BiTARMH
NeERBEH
F-2z% F-25% Total
—FR 2 2 BEEE  contractual IKEE
Within 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over undiscounted Carrying
year and 2 years to 5 years 5 years cash flow Amount
ARTMEAT ARMERFRT ARTEAT ARMERRT ARTEAT ARMEAR
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
—E-tF 2017
FHREER Variable rate borrowings
RITHH Bank loans (2,425) (1,095) - (1) (3,521) (3,470)
ZE-RE 2016
EEFEER Fixed rate borrowings
B—EERAFER  Loans from a holding
company (1,748) - - - (1,748) (1,700)
FHREER Variable rate borrowings
RITHR Bank loans (1,723) (2,530) (451) (1) (4,705) (4,545)
B—EERAFEZ  Loans from a holding
company (1,034) - - - (1,034) (1,022)
(2,757) (2,530) (451) (1) (5,739) (5,567)
(4,505) (2,530) (451) (1) (7,487) (7,267)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk mainly from
its long term and short term borrowings. Borrowings at
fixed and floating interest rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk
respectively. To cover interest rate risk, the Group maintains
the loan portfolio in a preferred fixed/floating interest rate
mix and review regularly.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. For
floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of liability outstanding at the balance sheet
date was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would
decrease/increase by RMB31 million (2016: decrease/
increase by RMB48 million).

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market interest rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion,
the analysis is used for reference purpose and should not
be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.
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g, MEREREEEREBER @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE
AND POLICIES (Continued)
T HHRE D CURRENCY RISK
N2 B A DA MR X SEAR T B 57 T A SN E The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
MMt ENEBIAR A Gmm e~ balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised
TR, FEERBERIFRN assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
T the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
B fafR B il
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARTMEART ARMEAR ARTBEAT ARMAAT
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ARM Renminbi 3 3 45 1,720
ey US Dollars 42 - 125 -
TREFERART BT RETHEY The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
NWAREHMEZMW REBTHETH strengthen in Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars and
BRELERBEIZEW, ZHNERE S US Dollars, assuming the pegged rate between Hong Kong
MAXBEANRITENRTIME, F dollar and US dollar would be unaffected. The sensitivity
AT IRECH, ARBINTCERBS% analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
T, EARMEBTRETRE denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
5%, MmA kTG EESEER at year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. For a
oEA R 5% weakening of Renminbi against Hong Kong Dollars and
US Dollars, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit or loss.
—=—tf —E—
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARMBEAT
RMB million RMB million
X S A 22 Effect on profit after tax (1) (85)

ST TIRYE R L BE KRR R
#iT, TREBRAT, mimlEra
B E, BEREINASHT R BIE
2%, NREMAERRKE N H S R
IR

This analysis is prepared by using certain assumptions on
a hypothetical situation. In reality, market exchange rates
would not change in isolation. In management’s opinion,
the analysis is used for reference purpose and should not
be considered a projection of the future profits or losses.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 24 and Note
25, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital, and will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the raise of bank
borrowings or the redemption of existing debt.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

—E—tHF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARTEAT
RMB million RMB million
BELHEEXRE THHE ZWA : Turnover comprises revenue from:
HEHL M Sales of goods 29,732 28,694

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
#14} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



e k& I
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N, BAER 5 EER (%) 6. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
o e E R SEGMENTS INFORMATION
AR BB
AKX X B /T
Eastern Central Southern Corporate/ a1t
region region region Elimination Total

ARTERAR ARTEAR ARHEAR ARTEAR ARTEAR
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

SINIWILVLS TVIDNVNIA

BE-_ZE—tF+=A For the year ended

=t+-ALEE 31 December 2017
EL# TURNOVER
XoMEE External sales 15,154 6,930 7,648 - 29,732
HEEEE Inter-segment sales’ 451 41 245 (737) -
A1t Total 15,605 6,971 7,893 (737) 29,732
2 E & Segment result? 877 63 1,014 1,954
REPHANF S BT Unallocated corporate expenses (103)
MEBKA Interest income 93
W& A Finance costs (128)
BRBE AR A Profit before taxation 1,816
B Taxation (630)
REERA Profit for the year 1,186
FT-Z2-tH+ZA=1T—H Asat31December 2017
B ASSETS
NERE Segment assets 18,859 7,413 11,979 38,251
1B ER IR 7= Deferred taxation assets 2,261
AEEHIR Taxation recoverable 14
ﬂifz“ﬁ'ﬁﬁ’] bR Unallocated corporate assets 25
BERFEE Consolidated total assets 40,651
il LIABILITIES
R Segment liabilities 12,137 3,877 4,520 20,534
RAFI Taxation payable 207
BRI i Deferred taxation liabilities 255
KANWARERBAS Unallocated corporate liabilities 1,170
FERAREE Consolidated total liabilities 22,166
Hitt B8 OTHER INFORMATION
ANEERDR” Additions to non-current assets 554 508 690 - 1,752
IR K4 Depreciation and amortisation 906 393 406 1 1,706
BHARESH Impairment loss recognised 383 256 100 - 739
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N BAERDEBER (&) 6.

DERB (%)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

SEGMENTS INFORMATION (Continued)

YISt

KX FX B Vaik:!
Eastern Central Southern Corporate/ A1t
region region region Elimination Total
ARPERAT ARMEAT ARHEAT ARMEATL ARFEATL
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMBmillion RMB million
BE-Z-»E For the year ended
'1'—)5]_‘|' HIEEE 31 December 2016
EL# TURNOVER
NIMEE External sales 15,016 6,588 7,090 - 28,694
DEBEHE Inter-segment sales' 429 48 284 (761) -
ait Total 15,445 6,636 7,374 (761) 28,694
a0k o Segment result? 1,007 73 772 1,852
RENRE VR B BI L Unallocated corporate expenses (95)
FIEWA Interest income 71
UEF%N Finance costs (89)
BRB AR R Profit before taxation 1,739
I Taxation (320)
REERF Profit for the year 1,419
—~"E+ZA=1T—H Asat31December 2016
B ASSETS
NER T Segment assets 19,932 7,724 12,181 39,837
BRI A Deferred taxation assets 2,011
AEEH Taxation recoverable 75
REDHHRESBRT Unallocated corporate assets 707
BRRFEE Consolidated total assets 42,630
AR LIABILITIES
paxiilig Segment liabilities 13,756 3,614 4,254 21,624
NN Taxation payable 80
BIER A Deferred taxation liabilities 271
REHHE AT B RS Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,988
BERAREE Consolidated total liabilities 24,963
Hitr B OTHER INFORMATION
REFRDIAF Additions to non-current assets 592 422 731 - 1,745
IR R4 Depreciation and amortisation 921 402 396 2 1,721
EBAAESR Impairment loss recognised 163 169 132 - 484
B - Notes:
1. 53 8P IR B Th iR M e BT A N AR U 3R 1. Inter-segment sales were charged at prevailing market rates.
2. DEA G A RITFEWA, W SR RBIIAT &R 2. Segment result represents earnings before interest income, finance

i,

costs and taxation.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
#14} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



J\.

ST ON

7. OTHER INCOME

e k& I
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—T—+tF —ZE-RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARMBEAT
RMB million RMB million
HAap N8B T 51 &5 : Other income includes the following:
FLEMA Interest income 93 71
EFIABUT #1Bh Government grants recognised 206 146
& B E R 7 TS A Profit on disposal of fixed assets 101 32
Wt 55 B As 8. FINANCE COSTS
—E—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTAEATT
RMB million RMB million
IRITOT R R B At DT OM) Interests on bank loans and other loans 99 124
R Financing charges 19 17
CHREH/,(Was) Exchange loss/(gain) 26 (32)
144 109
B R R B Less: Interest capitalised* (16) (20)
128 89

* FoT—LEM —BER

*

BN &

AR R FEBRI 4% (ZF—NF:

1.57%),

During 2017, the weighted average capitalisation rate on funds
borrowed generally is 1.34% (2016: 1.57%) per annum.
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. AEERF

9. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR

—E—+t5F ZE-RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEAT
RMB million RMB million
REFERFEHERTHIRT : Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:
ZEI & Auditors' remuneration
—KREE - current year 10 8
AT Staff costs
(BREFHE) (including directors' emoluments) 6,061 5,714
718 Depreciation
—BER” - Owned assets 1,683 1,697
HAth T2 2 7= B4 Amortisation of other intangible
(BREE—RRITHIEAN)  assets (included in general
and administrative expenses) 23 24
ERINRES R Impairment loss recognised on
(BEE—REITBZEAMN)  (included in general and
administrative expenses)
— EFEA" - Fixed assets 415 291
— T - Stocks 324 173
T REF 2 EWHELYER  Operating leases charges on land
and buildings 120 120
B ERMKA Cost of goods sold 19,703 19,021
BEEEANENG 10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
EEf4S DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
—e-t% —E
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTAEATT
RMB million RMB million
ik Fees 0.87 0.84
EXRG e REMN Basic salaries and allowances 2.61 3.88
NS Provident fund contributions 0.18 0.18
L Bonus' 6.52 4.45
10.18 9.35

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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+. EEZRARNE (&)

EEME (&)

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

we Hitti &
Fees Other Emoluments
EXxge

R ARSI —E-RF
Basic Provident A1t
Salaries and Fund wa &1t 2016
Allowances Contributions Bonus' Total Total
—E-tE 2017 ARMBAT AERMERAT ARMEAT ARPBART AERMEAT ARDEAT
EEpg Name of director RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
PERe Chen Lang’ - - - - - -
&2k Hou Xiaohai - 172 0.14 5.29 715 3.34
e Lai Po Sing, Tomakin - 0.89 0.04 0.77 1.70 0.71
R Chen Rong - - - - - -
Rtk Lai Ni Hium, Frank 0.07 - - 0.46 0.53 2.29
EAT Houang Tai Ninh 016 - - - 0.16 0.16
ZRH Li Ka Cheung, Eric 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16
REE Cheng Mo Chi, Moses 0.16 - - - 016 0.16
HER Bernard Charnwut Chan 0.16 - - - 0.16 0.16
Rt Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon 0.16 - - - 016 0.16
i Hong Jie - - - - - 0.01
IH Wang Qun - - - - - 2.20
ait Total 0.87 2.61 018 6.52 1018 -
ZERE 2016 0.84 3.88 018 445 - 9.3

BE - Notes:

1.

RUADNSEMFRE2ZE LS. MRIAL
THERARRXTHRUTHRFTEE,

AEFZEREFRE IR,
EEBemhELEE,

—E-LERHRARULEERFANEERKE
BEXNREHRARET, Meskfzn: b
TEFBAIK (ZF—RF: £). RERN
RUEBZERSWE=ZFRHRMN LN KRIK
(ZF—RF: k). REANTEE, H
28R A B R R oK RSRARE LR, DY
REEMR S (ZF—RF: T,

The bonus is determined with reference to the operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics during
both years.

Director fee for the year had been waived by respective directors.
The director’s emoluments were borne by CRC.

During 2017, no retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any payable (2016:
Nil). No consideration was provided to or receivable by third parties
for making available directors’ services (2016: Nil). There are no
loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled body corporate and connected entities (2016: Nil).
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T HUREHER
HE-F-—LFE+-A=+—ALF
B DAREFREASE LEF (-
TNE E), WEMEFERTH
ET. EARMA (ZF A% : Afr)
BT AFRL 2 B FENT

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the five highest
paid employees included one (2016: nil) Director, details of
whose remunerations are set out in Note 10. The details
of the remunerations paid to the other four (2016: five)
highest paid employees are as follows:

—E—tF —E—RE

2017 2016

ARTEATT ARTBEIT

RMB million RMB million

HARH 4 MoENL Basic salaries and allowances 2.70 6.25
N Provident fund contributions 0.18 0.48
TELT Bonus 28.25 12.52
31.13 19.25

PR (ZF—RF: Afl) K5 HM

NFTHEE

The emoluments of these four (2016: five) highest paid
individuals were within the following band:

ABR
No. of person
—B—t5 —EF—RF
2017 2016
AERM2,993,001 L& RMB2,993,001 to RMB3,420,000
ARM3,420,0007T (HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000)
(7#mM3,500,001TLE
7 4,000,0007T) = 2
AEM3,420,0017C RMB3,420,001 to RMB3,848,000
= ARM3,848,0007T (HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000)
(7#M4,000,0017¢
Z#M4,500,0007T) = 1
AEM3,848,0017C RMB3,848,001 to RMB4,276,000
= ARM4,276,0007T (HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000)
(#m™M4,500,0017C
Z78M5,000,0007T) = 1
AEM5,131,0017C RMB5,131,001 to RMB5,558,000
= ARM5,558,0007T (HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000)
(7#M6,000,0017T
£7mM6,500,0007T) = 1
AERM6,498,0017C RMB6,498,001 to RMB6,932,000
= ARM6,932,0007T (HK$7,500,001 to HK$8,000,000)
(3mM7,500,0017T
Z8mM8,000,0007T) 2 -

ARM7,798,0017T
= AR™M8,232,0007T
(7#mM9,000,0017T
Z8M9,500,0007T)

ARM9,098,0017
z= ARM9,532,0007C
(10,500,001 7T
Z#M11,000,0007T)

RMB7,798,001 to RMB8,232,000
(HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000)

RMB9,098,001 to RMB9,532,000
(HK$10,500,001 to HK$11,000,000)

1 30 A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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AEHREZHHBELAKRERASS
ZESEFORRIT R, ZFITHZR
FERRRRFDTERE, FhIRT
BEZESHA, HRALRERR
EAFezBEAMLITE, MBER
RTENFR Z E AU A LA
RARAR S 2 7R,

12. STAFF PROVIDENT FUND

A

HONG KONG

The Group operates various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The amount of contributions is based on a specified
percentage of the basic salary of employees and any
forfeited contributions in respect of unvested benefits of
staff leavers are used to reduce the Group’s contributions.

S i —B N
2017 2016
ARMBAR ARMBRATT
RMB million RMB million

REFNRARNRE Z H1%
B & e RE Rk

Group contributions to staff provident
fund, charged to consolidated profit

and loss account = -

HE R

AEHEFENBOREZATET A
BRI BFEENERKERRKE
AT R EC R, AR A1Z 1T X)X
NETRBEASELOER, (ERRE
MRS, AEHEEWE TR
ER R EHK,

N ERPERABRKRITNMESS
MEE R P B B AL R ARTE28
BARXL(ZE—XRFE: AEMSI4ER
TT)o

CHINESE MAINLAND

The employees of the Group in the Chinese Mainland are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the respective local government in the Chinese
Mainland. The Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
these schemes is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the consolidated profit and loss
account in respect of the above-mentioned schemes in
the Chinese Mainland amounted to approximately RMB528
million (2016: RMB514 million).

B I 13. TAXATION
—F—-tF ZENHE
2017 2016
ARMEBEAR ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million

o E A i RS8R Chinese Mainland income tax
AEZE I Current taxation 889 674
128 FE A5 1 Deferred taxation (259) (354)
630 320

BAEFERIBIBEAFE 21T KR
TR R IE 72 R16.5% (ZF — N4
16.5%) 1%,

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year.

SINIWILVLS TVIDNVNIA

131

S




132

250 W55 ik o I i
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TZ.BI (%)

FERNEHEARZBHIRER
B RS R B IR AT ROR B R A Ik
F, HE-_F—+tF+=-_A=+—8H
IEFEMERMBHERN2% (ZF—
NI 25%),

AR B R BRI ADE A 2 A Al T
BRERAEXERERRFITE 22

13. TAXATION (Continued)

Chinese Mainland income tax has been provided for based
on the estimated assessable profits in accordance with
the relevant tax laws applicable to the subsidiaries in the
Chinese Mainland. The applicable principal income tax rate
for the year ended 31 December 2017 is 25% (2016: 25%).

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

B, FBET - domestic rates applicable to the country concerned as
follows:
—T—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
BR A5 B4 A Profit before taxation 1,816 1,739
WBEXEFEBHREITE Y Taxcalculated at the domestic rates
I applicable in the country concerned 456 409
TANRTE Z WA Income not subject to taxation (18) (25)
Ak 2 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 51 50
FRFEIRBERIAZ Utilisation of previously unrecognised
it E S temporary difference (265) (371)
REWIAZ T Tax losses not recognised 319 293
EF LR FZ 2T Over provision on taxation
in previous year (6) (45)
AR o3 B FE 2 T AT S 3 Withholding tax on undistributed profits 93 9
ISz tH Taxation charge 630 320
THRE 14. DIVIDENDS
—E—tHF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEAT
RMB million RMB million
“E—EFRNEIRATHRE 2017 interim dividend paid of
EREBERARTO0.07T RMBO0.07 per ordinary share
(ZFB—R%F:. T) (2016: Nil) 227 -
“E—EFRREIRARIE 2017 proposed final dividend of
BT BRART0.07T RMBO0.07 per ordinary share
—EF—RF . ARM0.087t) (2016: RMB0.08) 227 260
454 260

B -

Note:

EARNBRFZE—)N\FEZA-+—BHETHLN
b, BEEARKRSEREESR L BEBRART0.077T
(ZZE—RF . ARM0.0870), BURETIIEA
AR THEITESL22 WL AN BRBKITE,
ZERSHLTTUSIRE AFBIAN AR, AFE
MEMEMRBRARRRGOBREZFAERIES
T-REFENRPERER T —EFENRHR
B, BHAARMLBTERT (ZE—RF: ).

At the meeting held on 21 March 2018, the directors proposed final dividend
of RMBO0.07 (2016: RMBO0.08) per ordinary share. This proposed dividend,
which is calculated on the Company’s number of ordinary shares as at the
date of the board meeting, is not recognised as a liability in these financial
statements. The total dividends paid by the Company, including the final
dividend for the year 2016 and the interim dividend for the year 2017,
amounting to RMB487 million (2016: Nil) are reflected in the current year
financial statements.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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TR BRER 15. EARNINGS PER SHARE
—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
BREARWERF|JIBIE  The calculation of the basic and diluted
THEIEITE earnings per share is based on the
following data:
B Earnings
FALUTESRREAR N ME Profit attributable to shareholders
BF RN BIRE of the Company for the purposes of
R 55 calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 1,175 629
—g—tf —EnE
2017 2016
B4 % B Number of shares
ALUTESRERK Weighted average number of ordinary
PESE 2N 59 E Ak shares for the purpose of calculating
IR 5 basic and diluted earnings per share 3,244,176,905  2,873,592,085
—E—+tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
ARMT ARMIT
RMB RMB
EREXREERR Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.36 0.22

ROt ERE_Z-—RF+-A=+
—BIEFETRAF AT BB
BHmER —T—RF)\A+/)\BoE
R RATH A B & A R F IR,

(MHE=+/0)

BRERZNESRMEERNEHIT

85 ExXmmt e —.

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares used in
the calculation of earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 has been adjusted for the bonus element
of the rights issue following the allotment and issuance of

the rights shares on 18 August 2016 (Note 28).

The denominators used are the same as those detailed

above for both basic and diluted earnings per share.
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-+
Sk

& & 7 7 16. FIXED ASSETS
BEER Hipdnl, NERES
HELRY Other property, plant and equipment
T
Interests in
leasehold it Hty
land held for Buildings BER>
own use under held for Other fixed Mt &it
operating leases own use assets Sub-total Total
AEFEAT  ARMERAT  ARTEAR  ARTEAT  ARMEAT
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
% Cost
“E-"F-A-H At 1 January 2016 3,695 9,150 20,763 29,913 33,608
hE Additions 256 41 1,448 1,489 1,745
e Disposals (19) (189) (737) (926) (945)
BHR Reclassifications 30 445 (490) (45) (15)
LRES Exchange difference (1) (17) (49) (66) (67)
ZF-RETZAZT—H  At31December 2016
k=F-t5-A-H and 1 January 2017 3,961 9,430 20,935 30,365 34,326
HE Additions 36 131 1,585 1,716 1,752
= Disposals (25) (18) (487) (505) (530)
EL i Reclassifications - 145 (145) - -
LHER Exchange difference 1 18 49 67 68
F-F—tF+-A=t—H At31 December 2017 3,973 9,706 21,937 31,643 35,616
ENFRRAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
F-5-7"5-A-H At 1 January 2016 561 2,555 9,103 11,658 12,219
TEEIH Charge for the year 83 374 1,240 1,614 1,697
LEKE Written back on disposals (6) (106) (582) (688) (694)
BEBIAZRESHR Impairment loss recognised - 53 238 291 291
BO% Reclassifications - - (15) (15) (15)
LHAER Exchange difference (1) (18) (53) (71) (72)
F-E-—7R"F+-A=t—H At31December 2016 and
kZE—t£-A-H 1 January 2017 637 2,858 9,931 12,789 13,426
REEHRH Charge for the year 87 372 1,204 1,596 1,683
HEKRE Written back on disposals (5) (14) (410) (424) (429)
EBIAZRESR Impairment loss recognised - 135 280 415 415
LRES Exchange difference 1 18 53 71 72
F-EF—+F+-A=1+—H At31December 2017 720 3,369 11,078 14,447 15,167
WE#E Net book values
ZE-EETZA=T—H  At31December 2017 3,263 6,337 10,859 17,196 20,449
FZE-~ETZA=FT—H At31December 2016 3,324 6,572 11,004 17,576 20,900

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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thBEA

HBEER~TEBEAERIE. Al
RIRE. HEDLEE. KMMRE

16. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Other fixed assets mainly comprise construction in
progress, plant and machinery, leasehold improvements,

K% furniture and equipment and motor vehicles.
ERIR LEpes BRMLEE
Construction Plant and Leasehold Efy £it
in progress machinery  improvements Others Total
ARAERT ARFERL  ARMEAR  ARPEAT  ARMEAR
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
A Cost
T-5-7F-A-H At 1January 2016 1,210 18,500 1,048 20,763
AE Additions 1,311 113 2% 1448
e Disposals ") (673) (63) (737)
EEipE Reclassifications (1.743) 1,198 55 (490)
LRER Fxchange difference 3 (52) - (49)
FE-ETZA=T-BR At 31 December 2016
“2-t5-A-H and 1 January 2017 780 19,086 1,064 2093
AE Additions 1,218 342 25 1,585
iif = Disposals - (393) (94) (487)
EFipES Reclassifications (889) 700 b (145)
LRES Exchange difference (5) 04 - 49
TR tETZA=1-H At31 December 2017 1,104 19,789 1,039 21937
ZitARAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment
T-EF-75-A-H At 1 January 2016 2 8,416 680 9,103
REEMA Charge for the year - 1,147 9 1,240
HERE Written back on disposals - (529) (63) (582)
BB RESH Impairment loss recognised - 233 5 238
EEinES Reclassifications - (17) 2 (15)
LRER Exchange difference - (53) - (53)
FE-ETZAZT-BR At 31 December 2016
I g and 1 January 2017 2 9,107 707 9,931
KERHIA Charge for the year - 1,135 89 1,224
LERE Written back on disposals - (327) (83) (410)
BHIAZRESR Impairment loss recognised - 75 5 280
LEER Exchange difference - 53 - 53
FIR-tETZA=T-H At 31 December 2017 2 10,333 738 11,078
kE2E Net book values
FE-tETZA=1-H At 31 December 2017 1,102 9,456 301 10,859
FZF-7F1tZA=1-A At 31 December 2016 8 9,689 337 11,004
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T+.FE 17. GOODWILL
ARTEATT
RMB million
R Cost
—F—-R"F¥—H—H At 1 January 2016 8,326
JLHZERR Exchange difference 96
FZE—RF+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2016
N ZF—+tF—H—H and 1 January 2017 8,422
SLRZE Exchange difference (104)
T E—tF+A=+—H At 31 December 2017 8,318
K E & Carrying values
—E—+tH+-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 8,318
FT=E—RF+=A=+—8H At 31 December 2016 8,422
HEKEEY R Ijui/mﬁ$$1j The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the
(“CGU"), T AREHABRMHIT Y cash generating units (“CGU”), each of which represent an

W o P

ERMYUENEED KB ZEER
. AT HNBEDEZDERE

operating entity within the operating segments identified
by the Group for the purpose of segment reporting. A
segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is
presented below:

S —E—%

2017 2016

ARTEAR ARTEALT

RMB million RMB million

HRX Eastern region 2,281 2,334
X Central region 828 829
mX Southern region 5,209 5,259

CGUZ AT Wk Bl & 20 Jh #% 8 A3 Y B 1t
BEETE, ZZEUTEAREZXARIES
BEBI 2 AFHAVSMEmMIEL 2
%ﬁlJFEJﬂ{_E/MLE E’L‘ﬁ_ﬂiﬁﬁszéﬁ
EXRAO TR RAEKE R
9.1% (ZEFE—7RF: 8.7%) 2 F#rit
RESKNRIESIHRITE

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
based on a value in use calculation. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period, cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
key assumptions including expected revenue growth rates
stated below and a discount rate of 9.1% (2016: 8.7%) per
annum.

1 36 A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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BHAFHMSHEZ
AR ONE R
Expected revenue growth rate
beyond the five years'
financial budget

(%)
—T—+tF —ZE-RF
2017 2016
KX Eastern region 2% 2%-3%
F X Central region 2%-3% 2%-3%
BX Southern region 2%-3% 2%-3%
T HMBEE R 18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ER
Brand names
AREMBELT
RMB million
% Cost
TE—RF—-H—H At 1 January 2016 475
ke Disposals (2)
SCHZER Exchange difference (4)
F_E-RF+-A=+—HBK At 31 December 2016
—F—tF—H—H and 1 January 2017 469
SLHZEE Exchange difference 4
F_E—tF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 473
Rt PR ROR A Accumulated amortisation and impairment
FZE—RF—HA—H At 1 January 2016 281
TN S PR Charge for the year 24
HEKE Written back on disposals 2)
SLRZE Exchange difference (5)
F_E—FRF+-_A=+—HK At 31 December 2016
—FT—tF—A—H and 1 January 2017 298
REE A Charge for the year 23 .
LR ZEF Exchange difference 5 z
=z
T-EF—tFt-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 326 2
KE 2 E Net book values g
T E2—tF+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2017 147 T
F-2—A%+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2016 171 &
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ThAUERRA

19. AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

—E—+t5F ZE-RF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARMBATT
RMB million RMB million
fRE W TR, Listed equity shares in Chinese
BAME Mainland, at fair value 9 9

TR ENRANERSRT 7

WA T,

=t Y RI

The fair values of investment in listed equity shares are

determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

20. PREPAYMENTS

—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
ARTBEAT ARTBEIT
RMB million RMB million

TSR & TE 5 7= 2 17 & B Deposit payment for purchase
of fixed assets 81 89

- % 21. STOCKS

B+t —E-RF
2017 2016
ARMBEAR ARTBERT
RMB million RMB million
R4k Raw materials 659 571
SiEmRBEME Consumables and packing materials 4,069 4,464
55 Work-in-progress 244 265
1A S Finished goods 854 810
5,826 6,110
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12 RS R E AR R I 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E—tF ZE-RF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARMBATT
RMB million RMB million
MUE =T R BMAK Trade receivables from third parties 609 688
MU BN RS B MR A A Trade receivables from fellow
RS subsidairies 33 41
K 26 Provision for doubtful debts (35) (40)
607 689
ATl E R E R Value-added tax recoverable 125 190
T FRI Prepayments 154 196
BfES Deposits paid 7 5
H At 57 YRR IR Other receivables 112 172
R — B3R AR 2 &) F I Amount due from a holding company
(FE) (Note) = 1
IRl ESYNSESEil ) ENS Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Fam (HE) (Note) 1 -
1,006 1,253
BE - Note:
N —EIERATERRENE QT ZRIN T Amounts due from a holding company and fellow subsidiaries were
., % B R BT, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
REF—RETEFL AT ZETH The Group normally trades with its customers under the

following credit terms:

(B #2Iff50. 3 (a) cash upon delivery;or
() =+tEA+XKRK (b) open credit from 30 to 90 days
FTEEHNNKE=ZF KA RIEH The following is the aging analysis of trade receivables
M A El R SR 2 K AT T from third parties and fellow subsidiaries at the balance
sheet date:
—B—tF ZERF
2017 2016
ARTEAT AEMBELT
RMB million RMB million
REH The Group
0-30K 0-30 days 78 96
31-60K 31-60 days 58 58
61-90K 61-90 days 34 57
> 90K > 90 days 437 478
607 689
REFATEHEANR S RE M N The fair value of the Group’s trade and other receivables at
MARMESEREEEE. balance sheet date was approximate to the corresponding

carrying amount.
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LR REMMN NI (%) 22.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

K ERZ2ED MOVEMENT IN THE PROVISION FOR DOUBTFUL
DEBTS

—T—+tF ZE—RF

2017 2016

ARMBEAT ARMEALT

RMB million RMB million

F—H—H At 1 January 40 39

EHIAZBESHR Impairment losses recognised 6 21

ESp ez dEI DR i Amounts written off as uncollectible (11) (20)

F+=-A=+—8H At 31 December 35 40
160 HA B AR ORR 16 I R A9 K R AGING OF PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

—E—tHF ZE—RF

2017 2016

ARTEAT ARTEAT

RMB million RMB million

BHN 2308 Less than 30 days past due 124 56

BEA31-60H 31-60 days past due 6

HH61-90H 61-90 days past due 4 5

EHAI90 A A+ Over 90 days past due 76 66

210 131

e ARG, IRICRUE B R ORI, S
AT & 9 T e

SENEELI: -l
RiLFE,

history of default.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

—B—tHF ZE—REF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARETEAT
RMB million RMB million
MIFE=ZFR BN Trade payables to third parties 1,616 1,583
MAS A R EEKE A A Trade payables to fellow
RGN subsidiaries 1 -
1,617 1,583
TR I Receipt in advance 654 613
RS A (1) Accruals (Note 1) 8,734 8,091
Bz Deposit received 4,243 4,404
FAh R 5K Other payables 1,329 1,670
RIRHE AR A BRI Amounts due to holding companies
(F$E2) (Note 2) 28 50
16,605 16,411
BEE - Notes:
1. MiETABEARME 7756 AT (ZF— 1. Including accruals on promotion and marketing expenses of
ANE . NRF6,363F L) HTREH R RMB6,775 million (2016: RMB6,363 million).
# A,
2. RAHERR AR A LA, 28 RbE 2. Amounts due to holding companies were unsecured, interest-free
RiE, and repayable on demand.
TFHEERBRATR S KR 2 K8 547 The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the
FONNE balance sheet date:
—B—tHF ZE—REF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
0-30K 0-30 days 1,635 1,461
31-60K 31-60 days 17 22
61-90K 61-90 days 8 12
> 90K > 90 days 57 88
1,617 1,583

REHTHEBRNR 5 R EA N AR
MARMESEKEERS,

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other payables at

balance sheet date was approximate to the corresponding

carrying amount.
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TR B —RIER A TR
FoE—XRF, B—RERARER
BIEARMI,7008 77T & EM1,143
AR (BETFTARMI0228 5 7T)
VR, WAERRALTEE, 25
BREMEISNHEBERITRALIEFE
("HIBOR") + 0.8%ItERT—_ZE—+
FRLFHE,

TR R HA BT K

24. LOANS FROM A HOLDING COMPANY

Loans from a holding company in 2016 included loans
of RMB1,700 million and HK$1,143 million (equivalent to
RMB1,022 million) which are unsecured, bear interest at
3.8% and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) +
0.8% per annum, respectively, and were fully repaid during
2017.

25A. SHORT TERM LOANS

—T—+tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARMEALT
RMB million RMB million
KEALHIRRITIIH Current portion of long term
BIHAEE 5 unsecured bank loans 84 -
R E TR TIT Short term unsecured bank loans 2,299 1,592
2,383 1,592
I KHIER 25B.LONG TERM LOANS
—E—tF —ERF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
T IRARIT I RX Unsecured bank loans 1,171 2,953
S Fm a2 BNERER 5 Current portion included in current
liabilities (84) -
1,087 2,953
—T—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARMELT
RMB million RMB million
KEA Bz AERV AR o R The non-current portion of long term
WATFHEE liabilities are repayable as follows:
RITHR Bank Loans
—FEERMEFR After 1 year, but within 2 years 1,086 2,505
MEALEERFNR After 2 years, but within 5 years = 447
hER After 5 years 1 1
1,087 2,953
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TILKBRR (&

REAR AR E &EE ﬁﬁmﬁ,‘e&%ﬁ
AARMIMZT (ZE—RF: AR
M29.5127T), %E_TftEJr:ﬂE
+—8, EFHEFIMAARTI0.1Z
T (ZF—XF: ARM29.51Z7T),

REHBEUNEMRARM N ELLZF

BfER, BEHHISHIBOREFRE A
Eﬁﬂﬂﬁzm RF R,

AERFBREBRZKGFNEERH

25B. LONG TERM LOANS (continued)

The aggregate amount of committed bank borrowing
facilities available to the Group is RMB3.01 billion (2016:
RMB2.95 billion). As at 31 December 2017, a sum of
RMB3.01 billion (2016: RMB2.95 billion) has been drawn
down.

The Group has floating rate borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi with interest rates linked
to HIBOR and the lending rate stipulated by the People’s
Bank of China respectively.

The effective annual interest rates on the Group’s floating

1.09%%2.80% (Z T —RNF: §F rate borrowings range from mainly 1.09% to 2.80% (2016:
1.02%%E3.92%) 75, from 1.02% to 3.92%) per annum.

7. 12 JE B I 26. DEFERRED TAXATION
FRBERIA = ROGZZDINT The movement in deferred taxation assets and liabilities

recognised during the year is as follows:

HE RERHM
B Impairment, provision Ait
Tax losses and others Total
“E-tf —EF-XF ZB-t§f —F-RF CZE-tf —FRF
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ARMBAT ARMEAT ARMBAR ARMAAT ARMEART ARMEAL
RMB million  RMBmillion  RMBmillion  RMBmillion ~ RMB million ~ RMB million
BIERR = Deferred taxation assets
T-A—-H At 1 January 81 12 1,930 1,643 2,011 1,655
EGAaTHERITA Credited to consolidated
profit and loss account 20 69 230 287 250 356
F+-A=1+-H At 31 December 101 81 2,160 1,930 2,261 2,01

BIER IR = AMEANBESMEEE
AR N IRFE &R AT 9 EBR,
REsHmdkpil, T-FE—tF+
ZA=T—H, AEBARBIAZES
SIHMAEARM2998F L (ZE—X
F. ARM3,7128H7m), MAEH
REWMTEASIHIRZERMEREKD
MR AN, eI EETASE
WHIAmZ RBIAZH S SIHABARD
2859 T (ZE—XF: AR
3,673B17T).

Deferred taxation assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
At 31 December 2017, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of RMB2,998 million (2016: RMB3,712 million)
which is uncertain as to whether it can be utilised to set
off against future taxable income. Out of this amount,
the unrecognised tax loss of RMB2,859 million (2016:
RMB3,673 million) will expire within 5 years.
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A, B FERLIN (52

LT HEEGZRRFSAMRTHINZ
BIRERMAGARBO R TFRZE
-

26. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The components of deferred taxation liabilities recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements
during the year are as follows:

RAOBREZ

TN FREH

PEBBITIE  Withholding

Accelerated tax on
tax undistributed 4it
depreciation profits Total

ARTERAT AERMBEAT ARTBEAT
RMB million RMB million RMB million

F—E-—XRF—-HA—H At 1 January 2016 145 113 258
EgaHmk (EA),/HIBR  (Credited)/charged to
consolidated profit
and loss account (7) 9 2
SLRIFEE Exchange rate adjustment 1 10 M
ZE—ARF+=ZA=1+—H At31 December 2016
k-F—+tF—A—H and 1 January 2017 139 132 271
EEeammiit A Credited to consolidated profit
and loss account 7) (2) (9)
LRI Exchange rate adjustment (1) (6) 7)
FTZE—tF+ZA=+—H At31 December 2017 131 124 255

BIEREARKMEEN, TIRMAE
MENPEMELARE —TE/NF—
A—BERBNAEMEMHREM
E W, 3 3T A LA R 2 Be FUE T it 7
A LR B Sk E AR RLE Y EBR(ETR
2

EHo

Under the Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has been provided for undistributed profits to the
extent that declarations of dividends are anticipated in the
foreseeable future.

TE (M%) AR2AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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R A

NAEBRETF T —"FtAZ+ZHAEFE=
A& A% 3R & — AR HEAR Ak 1 ) B LA RRE 11,73
7T (FEE T ARM10.0570) BN & 77 R BE A&
811,044,226 5Tk fh., HREFME F_FT—"F
JAV;: AN =R

Ztt b IER B AR 27. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE2—tF+=-_A=+—H, Hfb At 31 December 2017, other non-current liabilities
ERDINGEFEEIAN BT WRT included government grants of RMB1,487 million (2016:
BB ARM1 4878 T (ZF — RMB881 million) recognised as deferred revenue. The
NFE ARM8IE I L), BB government grants mainly represent subsidies granted by
FE2NFEARLNEBATNAGX G PRC governmental authorities towards the purchases of
SRS T HE A RN, leasehold land.

28. SHARE CAPITAL
—E—tHF —ZF—RF
2017 2016
¥ B HE R 4R B A&
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
BAR ARTEAR Baak ARMBAT
million RMB million million RMB million
ERITRHBRERA  Issued and fully paid
F—H—H At 1 January 3,244 14,090 2,433 5,941
MERETZ Issue of new shares
AR (N8R under rights issue
KT 25 A) (net of share issue
(BE) expenses) (Note) - = 811 8,149
FH+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 3,244 14,090 3,244 14,090
BEE - Note:
FHE-_ZT—R"F+_A=+—HIEEERN, & During the year ended 31 December 2016, 811,044,226 new shares were

issued and allotted by the Company pursuant to a rights issue at the
subscription price of HK$11.73 (equivalent to RMB10.05) per share, on the
basis of one rights share for every three shares held by its shareholders on
22 July 2016. The rights issue was completed on 18 August 2016.
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HGEU S RERME

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT
B KREITHIZINERE A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
—ZT—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARMBELTT
RMB million RMB million
B A5 A1 g Profit before taxation 1,816 1,739
HEE Adjustments for:
LR E Exchange gain (10) (32)
MEMA Interest income (93) (71)
A EX Interest expenses 83 104
& B TE R =4 Net gain on disposal of fixed assets (101) (28)
EHIAZ BE R~ Impairment loss recognised
BIESH on fixed assets 415 291
EHAZFHRRESHR Impairment loss recognised on stocks 324 173
#r18 Depreciation 1,683 1,697
HA T & = hi 4 Amortisation of other intangible
assets 23 24
EFIABT * B Government grants recognised (28) (146)
EZReZIAHZ Operating cash inflows before
KEIERA working capital changes 4112 3,751
Fh 2 %3 Changes in stocks (40) 208
R REMN KIS  Changes in trade and other
receivables 268 277
RSB REMPNAFIM 2SN  Changes in trade and other payables 713 853
ZFEMFZA® Cash generated from operations 5,053 5,089

146 +
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GBI ERERME (&) 29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)
Z ®ERFEHFEZAGBTR B RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
B —RER
NEERK
bR LI KGR Loans from
Short-term Long-term a holding &it
loans loans company Total

ARTERT ARMEBAT ARMBEAT ARTEAT
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million

F=E—tF At 1 January 2017
—H—H 1,592 2,953 2,722 7,267
YeneE Cash flows 770 (1,605) (2,715) (3,550)
SNCAEZ Foreign exchange
movement (63) (177) (7) (247)
E RN WL Non-cash movements
#)As Zh 84 (84) - -
T-E—tF At 31 December 2017
+=ZA=+—H 2,383 1,087 - 3,470
=t BRAERE 30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
—EB—tHF ZE—REF
2017 2016
ARTEART ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
TFHEREATEKIIEETE  Capital commitments outstanding on
BPE 2 RAEBEIT acquisition of fixed assets at the
balance sheet date are as follows:
EENERARKE Contracted but not provided for 2,055 5,017
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B L= 31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
ERABEA AS LESSEE
—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
T&EER, REAREH At the balance sheet date, the total
B FH 970 F 10 T EA 8] future minimum lease payments
SN Z&EEBERFRIEE . under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:
—E—FNR - Within one year 64 57
—EE_FEERTF - In the second to fifth year inclusive
(BEEEMEF) 30 20
—-hFZRE - After five years 37 2
131 79

BELHEHATBER-E_TF2ER
HARI I,

SERFREZRS

F-ET—-—XE=ZA=-H, AAF
5Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV
(“ABI") 1T EEW A BAANM,600
BAETERSGHEA (BEFARM
11,0018 Aot) W BEEBRHE
FRAGE (" ESEBIE") 49%8 X
(W), AnRRkEIEREER (I
M) BR A A ("SABMiller Asia”) &
5 B 38 B 4 H B 18 E51% R 49% R
N, WBF-—FE—X F+A+—H
TR, XA, LESEERER AR
NANERME AT,

ZE-RNTFEN, ARFESEEE
“REBREGIRA —BRERRKRDH
EOf, BINWM TR AR A (B T
11.737t (B & F A R ™10.057T) #
17811,044,226 ft iz, ZEHE LN E™
9,514F 7t (FABRFFZHT), FI5EI
FERAEWERE, #RE T —
NFENABHNBOERATT. B,
BRAEF (SH) BIEHIFE, W
FERFNERLEIHITED,

32.

Operating leases are negotiated for lease terms principally
ranged from 1 to 20 years.

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

On 2 March 2016, the Company and Anheuser-Busch InBev
SA/NV (“ABI”) entered into a sales and purchase agreement
to acquire the 49% equity interest in China Resources
Snow Breweries Limited (“CRSB”), a company previously
owned as to 51% by the Company and 49% by SABMiller
Asia Limited (“SABMiller Asia”), at a total consideration
of US$1,600 million and transaction cost (equivalent to
RMB11,001 million) (the “Acquisition”). The Acquisition was
completed on 11 October 2016 and CRSB become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company upon completion.

During the year 2016, the Company raised approximately
HK$9,514 million, before expenses, by way of a rights issue
of 811,044,226 shares at a subscription price of HK$11.73
(equivalent to RMB10.05) per rights share, on the basis
of one rights share for every three ordinary shares. The
proceeds were mainly used for funding the Acquisition.
The rights shares were allotted and issued on 18 August
2016. As a result, the earnings/(losses) per share has
been adjusted and prior year comparative has also been
restated for such effect.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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S5FFFRFEZRS ()

pEah, 40 (R E) BRA A ("4
EH") FT_E—AFEFERHETRR
WG ARNT, AERWR®, F=
BE-XE+-A=1+—H, TEHA
RM2,722B8 A AER (Mx =+
M),

EARERS

RRBEEWMBERE (BTARAZX
EAL) #HTZRHE THAKB N
W, FRERHEFEE. RAMS
MERTHBEZRGRERIN, A&
H#IT TS MEARERS

32.

33.

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

In addition, China Resources (Holdings) Company Limited
(“CRH”) provided shareholder’s loans to the Company
during the year 2016 for funding the Acquisition. As at 31
December 2016, RMB2,722 million was provided to the
Group (Note 24).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
which are related parties of the Company, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in
this Note. In addition to the transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the
Group entered into the following material related party
transactions:

—E—tF —ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAR ARTEATT
RMB million RMB million
BX T RaRMH RS Receipt of services from
— B A A (FHE) A holding company (Note) 81 78
M NN EEE S Sales of goods to
B RARISHAZHEAT] Fellow subsidiaries 89 149
FTArElZzE LML H  Operating lease expenses to
HRRIEHZHEAR] Fellow subsidiaries 24 22
kB TR R ZFEHA Interest income from
BRARIEHE 2 HE AR Fellow subsidiaries 9 -
FRANEZFEZ T Interest expenses to
i /N Holding companies 32 22
BRRIEFZHEAR] A fellow subsidiary = 4
BE - Note:
THRS ZH—EERA TR, HKAT TR Administrative service is provided by a holding company, of which costs are

Al HEATFEEBHEED M,

identifiable and are allocated on a fair and equitable basis.
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S ERRERS (&)

Z

SEMpRERNBERBHTAZ R
5 4%

REHAXRG NP ELEBERRA ("
E4E) Oz 2 A fh ERFES) A
TP ERABEHAZKA. RS%E
HBERAREHARTZRHIN, AEH
BEEELSIRPSFERFER
HEZEEF. KFRZEFHREEATZR
ZREHTLESER, EFINR, K
HHBRBERAN, RFREF LN
NXBERSESHERAKRAZMSRE
EHE, SREXRGEHTZIRS (B
KEH@ERS / RBRITERRAERX
ZERANE) TR AEE — Rl 55 dE
T3, AEHEINA, BEMRMLEX
IRz X ERHERDRTARKE
Z¥,

FTEEBEAR ZEHMH

AEAMNEERDEESFHREAN
TEEBEAR BRFHMHETHEAEM
SHMEMET, AFERNEREXNT
BREERAURSHEAINEIEE
BARZBME (ZF—XF: I,

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES WITH OTHER STATE-
CONTROLLED ENTITIES IN CHINESE MAINLAND

The Group itself is a part of a larger group of companies
under China Resources Company Limited (“CRC”) which
is controlled by the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
government. Apart from the transactions with CRC group,
the Group also conducts businesses with entities directly
or indirectly controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government in the ordinary course
of business. The directors are of the opinion that those
entities other than the CRC group do not have the power
to govern or participate in the financial and operating
policies of the Group. The transactions including sales
and purchases of goods and services and bank deposits
and corresponding interest income, with these entities are
conducted in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.
The Group believes that it has provided, at the best of its
knowledge, adequate and appropriate disclosure of related
party transactions as summarised above.

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Group regards the directors and the five highest
paid employees are key management personnel and
the respective compensation is set out in Note 10
to consolidated financial statement. There was no
remuneration paid for key management personnel other
than directors or the five highest paid employees during
the year (2016: Nil).

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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34. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY
A BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2017

—E—tF ZE—RF
2017 2016
ARTEAT ARMBATT
RMB million RMB million
ERNEF Non-current assets
& 7E = Fixed assets
— HAuyml, MBERIEE - Other property, plant and equipment 2 3
FHEAR 2N Interests in subsidiaries 15,626 16,722
15,628 16,725
Fsh &= Current assets
R 5 R HAth 57 BRI Trade and other receivables 119 152
e RETER Cash and bank balances 19 698
138 850
s s Current liabilities
5 e o R I Trade and other payables (36) (61)
B — B4R A B PR Loans from a holding company = (2,722)
5 EATT K Short term loans (460) (346)
(496) (3,129)
R AR E Net current liabilities (358) (2,279)
BRFRAR Ak Total assets less current liabilities 15,270 14,446
ERI A Non-current liabilities
KHITT R Long term loans (669) -
156 JE 7 10 A {51 Deferred taxation liabilities = (1)
(669) (1)
14,601 14,445
BRA R % Capital and reserves
AR Share capital 14,090 14,090
i Reserves 511 355
14,601 14,445

MREH CHEN LANG

ZEZEDirector

X7 LAI PO SING, TOMAKIN
EZEDirector
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SR RFAGRREERTS (1)

Z ABRABZEEXD

(2 F—tF+_A=+—H

. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2017

PR 1 14
R it %l
FrisRR &
Shares held
SLHA&%Z  forrestricted RERER
Exchange incentive Retained &t
reserve award scheme profits Total
ARMEAT ARMEAT ARMBEAT ARMAEAT
RMB million RMB million RMB million RMB million
ZE-RF At 1 January 2016
—HA—H (2,973) (19) 2,967 (25)
LERERS Exchange differences
on translation 744 - - 744
KEE SR Loss for the year - - (364) (364)
F=F—RF At 31 December 2016
+=—A=+—H and 1 January 2017
M-t
—HA—H (2,229) (19) 2,603 355
LERERS Exchange difference
on translation (989) - - (989)
RNE R Profit for the year - - 1,632 1,632
3¢5} Dividend - - (487) (487)
T-E—tF At 31 December 2017
+=ZA=+—H (3,218) (19) 3,748 511

ARRAAERDPERTREZMEEIAR
1,508 FL(ZFE—~FE: ARM

4318 7 7T).

CSTLRESRE VSRS

FIBMERI62M A LRAMSIRE
BEREFCT T )\ F=A=-+—

H#tE,

35.

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to
the shareholders amounted to RMB1,505 million (2016:
RMB431 million).

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 93
to 152 were approved by the board of directors on 21 March
2018.

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

FZF—tF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2017

LUN:Ri
Percentage of capital
BRTEEREA / ERAR AEANE  KLARE  MELTEE
HEAH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby TEL%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
TEEEMARL
Incorporated in Hong Kong
HAIMmRHER A 2 BB 100.0 - 1000 1%
CRE Beverage Trading Limited 2 ordinary shares Financing
TRELZRGEMAL
Incorporated in British Virgin Islands
LRSTRERRAF 42,800,400 R BRAE X TZ BB 100.0 100.0 - RARK
China Resources Snow Breweries Limited 42,800,400 ordinary shares Investment holding
of US$1 each
THRENBERAL
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland
o AEEIEEE (1)) BRRAAT AR256,143,8537 100.0 - 1000 HENHELES R
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB256,143,853 Manufacturing and distribution
(Sichuan) Co., Ltd of beer products
oo LEEREE (%) BRREAT ART131,270,0007T 1000 - 1000 HENHERES
China Resoures Snow Breweries RMB131,270,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Guangan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o LHERRE (BR) BRRALA ARM245,792,5017 100.0 - 1000 HERMHERESR
RMB245,792,501 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o LESERE (BH) ARAF 31,200,000%7% 1000 - 1000 HIENHERES R
China Resources Snowflake Brewery US$31,200,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Jilin) Co., Ltd. of beer products n
:
oo LR (RRE) BRAF AR260,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HIEMHELESR =
RMB260,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution g %
o OF
of beer products o
z
A
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

F=F—tF+=F=+—H At 31 December 2017

REB
Percentage of capital
BRTEBRRE /EHEA AEANE  KLARE  MELTEE
HEAH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby TEL%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
THRENSIMAL (%)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
o AREREE () BRAF ARM438,147 5007 100.0 - 1000 FiERHERER
China Resources Snow Breweries RMBA438,147,500 Manufacturing and distribution
(Anhui) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EZERE (R ARAT AR852,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 FIENHERES R
China Resources Snow Brewery RMB652,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o AREREE (PE) BRAF 98,942,290.82% 7T 100.0 - 1000 HHBE=R
1U5$98,942,290.82 Distribution of beer products
o LEEREE (ItR) BRAF 21,000,000%7 100.0 - 1000 HIENEERES R
US$21,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AREREE (R) BRAF 55,850,005 100.0 - 1000 HENHERESR
US$55,850,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AREREE () BRAF 32,797 8695 100.0 - 1000 HENEERER
China Resources Snow Brewery US$32,797,869 Manufacturing and distribution
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o EEREE (D) BRAA AR 264,400,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HENEERE-R
RMB264,400,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AREREE (RR) BRAF AR95,000,0007 100.0 - 1000 FERMHERESR
RMB95,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
#14} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT
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FEME A
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
FZF—tF+=F=+—H At 31 December 2017

EXzpibie

Percentage of capital

BRTEERESR /ERAR AEANE  KLARE  WELTEE
HEAH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby TEL%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
THRENSIMAL (%)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
o AREREE (K1) BRAF AR69,440,0007C 100.0 - 1000 HIERNHERESR
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB69,440,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Tianmen) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o LEERWE (BT) ARAF 29,166,116.38% 7T 100.0 - 1000 HHENEERER
China Resources Snow Breweries 1S$29,166,116.38 Manufacturing and distribution
(Heilongjiang) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o AREREE (O15) BRAF 114,000,000 100.0 - 1000 HENHERESR
China Resources Snow Breweries US$114,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Jiangsu) Limited of beer products
o LEEREE (M) BRAF ART161,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HERNEERE R
RMB161,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o LHEREE (BM) BRAF 55,800,000 100.0 - 1000 HIENHERESR
China Resources Snow Breweries US$55,800,000 Manufacturing and distribution
(Wenzhou) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o AREREE (1) BRAF 58,020,000 100.0 - 1000 HERMHERESR
U5$58,020,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o REETRE (A1) ARAE 88,710,005 100.0 - 1000 FIEMHERESR
US$88,710,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o LHEREE (LB) BRAF AR850,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HERMHERESR §
RMB850,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution 2 =
of beer products 4 %
2 O
=
z
A
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

F=F—tF+=F=+—H At 31 December 2017

REB
Percentage of capital
BRTEBRRE /EHEA AEANE  KLARE  MELTEE
HEAH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby TEL%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
THRENSIMAL (%)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
* AEEREE (L) BRAF ART282,040,0007T 95.73 - 95.73 HIEMHERE R
RMB282,040,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o LREREE (BE) BRAA AR285,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HEREERE-R
RMB285,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AREREE (%) BRRELH AE34,988,797C 100.0 - 1000 HENHERESR
China Resources Snow Breweries RMB34,988,797 Manufacturing and distribution
(Zigong) Co., Ltd. of beer products
o LEEREE (k2) BRAF 21,100,005 100.0 - 1000 FERNHERESR
US$21,100,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AREREE (M) BRAF AR180,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HENEERE"R
RMB180,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o AREREE () BRAF AET400,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 FIEMHEERES R
RMB400,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o LEEREE (D) EiER AR ART426,000,0007T 100.0 - 1000 HLERNEERE R
RMB426,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED

#14} 2017 ANNUAL REPORT
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
FZF—tF+=F=+—H At 31 December 2017

REB D
Percentage of capital
BRTEBRRA /ER R REARN K EAARE  HEAARA
HEAH Issued ordinary share capital/ Attributable  Held by the Heldby TEL%
Subsidiaries registered capital to the Group Company  subsidiaries Principal activities
TREREERAL (£)
Incorporated in Chinese Mainland (Continued)
w BEEE () AR LA 48,000,005 100.0 - 1000 FIENHELES R
US$48,000,000 Manufacturing and distribution
of beer products
o RZEENREERERRAR 30,000,000 7T 100.0 - 1000 FENHELCESR

Tianjin Binhai New Area Snow Breweries  US$30,000,000

Manufacturing and distribution

Co., Ltd. of beer products

M

Notes:

—.  EFIAR 2EIFIAEMBLARIFBELEREL TR, M ERNEIINAEA LS A~BEEBRZNN 2 HEBARIFS,

1. The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the
above list contains only the particulars of the subsidiaries which materially affect the results or assets of the Group.

= BEEIHEN, SRAZEEEWMEERINEVEI MK PAEM S
Unless otherwise stated, the principal country of operation of each company is the same as its place of incorporation.

= GEHRERMIEMKRIZZ AR, ERXERITEAZHEEDBIR (E).

3. For companies incorporated in the Chinese Mainland, the English name is as shown in the Certificate of Approval of each company (if
any).

* AR

*

Equity Joint Venture

o VR
*x Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise

SIN3WILYLS TYDNVNIS
SeEn
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4 W 55 BT RH B
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

—E-=F —E-NF “E-RF —E-RF —E—tF
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
ARBAT ARMEAT ARTEAT ARTEAT ARWEAR
RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million ~ RMB million RMB million
SFEL% Consolidated results
ki Turnover 116,939 133,757 106,872 28,694 29,732
BB EA(5H8)  Profit/(loss) attributable
to shareholders 1,524 (128) (4118) 629 1175
BRREREF]/(SH) Basic earnings/(losses) per share  RMB0.58  RMB(0.05)  RMB(1.56)  RMBO0.22 RMB0.36
BRARE Dividend per share
R Interim HK$0.13 HK$0.11 - - RMBO0.07
(RMB0.10)  (RMBO0.09)
=3l Special - - HK$12.30 - -
(RMB10.08)
R Final HK$0.14 HK$0.16 - RMBO0.08 RMBO0.07
(RMB0.11)  (RMBO0.13)
HK$0.27 HK$0.27  HK$12.30  RMBO0.08 RMBO0.14
(RMB0.21)  (RMB0.22) (RMB10.08)
SERRTEARE Consolidated balance sheet
B Fixed assets 54,342 69,468 21,389 20,900 20,449
G Goodwill 15,275 18,029 8,326 8,422 8,318
Hib TR~ Other intangible assets 442 402 194 171 147
KERR Long term investments 417 1116 10 9 9
AT I Prepayments 688 801 158 89 81
BRI IR = Deferred taxation assets 1,211 1,794 1,655 2,011 2,261
MR E Net current liabilities (8,219) (16,659) (7714) (9,777 (9,809)
Keizh Employment of capital 64,156 74,951 24,018 21,825 21,456
A Share capital 2,409 15,691 5,941 14,090 14,090
% Reserves 32,243 22764 4115 3,511 4,331
AR & Shareholders funds 34,652 38,455 10,056 17,601 18,421
e e Non-controlling interests 12,216 16,469 9,264 66 64
KB Long term loans 15,210 15,676 3,839 2,953 1,087
EkHBAR Other non-current liabilities 638 2,580 601 934 1,629
BB IEFR I Deferred taxation liabilities 1,440 1,771 258 271 255
EzA%e Capital employed 64,156 74,951 24,018 21,825 21,456

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
44 2017 ANNUAL REPORT



FERPITES
Chairman and Executive Director
P BA Chen Lang

HENTERWITES
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
= Hou Xiaohai

HEMSERNITES
Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
ZEF  Lai Po Sing, Tomakin

ERITES

Non-Executive Directors
SRS Chen Rong

BgiE Lai NiHium, Frank

MY IERITES

Independent Non-Executive Directors
#AT  HouangTai Ninh

ZREE  Li KaCheung, Eric

MEE  Cheng Mo Chi, Moses
BRE B Bernard Charnwut Chan
FMFE  Siu Kwing Chue, Gordon

2 ) B R
CORPORATE INFORMATION

IS
Company Secretary
ZE7  Lai PoSing, Tomakin

ZEIm

Auditor
ZEFBLITINESA
PricewaterhouseCoopers

EMDBLAREEE MBI

Registered Office and Principal Place of Business
BASFELE265 4 REIE

39/F, China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

SIN3WILYLS TYDNVNIS
SeEn

159



160

1 BF 3 B R

INFORMATION FOR INVESTORS

NHEF LS

Announcement of Annual Results
20183 H21H

21 March 2018

EEARBRRERENFR D 2 &ERE
Last Day of Dealings in Shares with
Entitlement to Final Dividend
201845 5H25H

25 May 2018

FEDERNEIFBICFE

Closure of Register Period

WEAERBERFBAFAH T2 LREZBRRGN

20185 H17HE2018%F5H24H
(BERRBEEN)

To determine the identity of members
who are entitled to attend and vote at the
annual general meeting:

17 May 2018 to 24 May 2018

(both days inclusive)

WERKFEB RN 2 RERE 2 F
20185 H30H

To ascertain the members' entitlement to
the proposed final dividend:

30 May 2018

REBREARE

Payment of Final Dividend
201856 A15 R A

On or about 15 June 2018

% 2 &g 4k

Share Registrar
HEREERAF
BBERRNER183S
aPL228%

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

REEEL

Depositary

BNY Mellon Shareowner Services
P.0. Box 30170

College Station

Tx 77842-3170

RERS

Stock Codes
BEBBKER S 00291
i 291 HK

BB 0 0291.HK
ADRfKS : CRHKY
CUSIP: 16940R109
Hong Kong Stock Exchange : 00291
Bloomberg : 291 HK
Reuters : 0291.HK
ADR symbol : CRHKY
CUSIP : 16940R109

BRRERR

Investor Relations
BBHB . ir@cre.com.hk
Email : ir@cre.com.hk

A () AW AE CHINA RESOURCES BEER (HOLDINGS) COMPANY LIMITED
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